» o .2 . — .
: AB 245 8 {Rov. 7/93)(N.D. Okla. rav.) Sheet 1 - Judgmant in a Criminal Case

o | | UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT F I LE D
"'“‘* | - - Northern District of Oklahoma _'  JUL 23 1997 S
" UNITED STATES OF AMERICA U Bombardi, Slerk
v, Case Number 96-CR-161-002-BU

FREDDIE LEONARD FEAGANS, IV

/GNTERED ON DOCKET
Befendant. K

pate 1-3/.9 7
JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
(For Offensas Committed On or After November 1, 19

The defendant, FREDDIE LEONARD FEAGANS, IV, was represented by Martin G. Hart.

On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Counts 26, 27, 28, 31, 57, 58, 59, and 62
of the Indictment, |

The defendant pleaded guilty March 10, 1997, to Count 1 of the Indictment. Accordingly, the
defendant is adjudged guilty of such count(s), involving the following offense(s):

Date Gffense Count
Title & Section Nature of Offense : Cono!uded Number(s}
i8 US'_Q"S?T' Conspiracy to Possess a Forged ' ' 6/1 7!94 1

o Security and Commit Bank Fraud
f As pronounced on July 1, 1997, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of this
’*Judgment The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 50, for
count{s) 1 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the Q 3 day of - % Qyn . 1997,

United States District Cout )
Northern Districi of Oklchome  } 5
) hereby certify that the foregoing

Is o true copy of the original on file
in this tounw e oo o - The Honorable Michael Buydge, Chief
il bl et ., United States District Judbe

,—Defendan 12 gSN 56'5 11-9674
sfendani’s Date of Birth: 9/6/70
Defendél_‘_t' /res:den ¢ ing address

race Lane, Unit B, Anaheim Hills CA

(1710 N. tmperial T
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iéfendant: FREDDIE LEONARD FEAGANS, IV - B : S "
Case Number: 96-CR-161-002-BU
IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 12 months.

The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: that the defendant recsive
intensive and comprehensive drug treatment while in custody.

The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal.

RETURN

| have executed this Judgrneht as faollows:

Defendant delivered on to _
at ' : . with a certified copy of this Judgment.

‘ United S.té.tes.M'érsha'l

By

Deputy Marshal
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¢ ‘efendant: FREDDIE LEONARD FEAGANS, IV

Case Number: 96-CR-161-002-BU
SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of three (3)
years.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or loca! crime;
shall not illegally possess a controlied substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court (set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1. The defendant shall report in person ta the probation office in the district to which the defendant is released within 72 hours
of ralaasa from the custady of the Bureau of Prisons. '
2. If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, coste, of rastitution obligation, it shall be a condition of supervigsed release

that tha defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the
term of supervised ralease.

3. Tha defendant shall not own or possess a firearm ot destructive device.

4, The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment (to inciude inpatient} for drug and alcohol
abuse, as directed by tha Probation Officer, until such time as released from the program by the Probation Officer.

8, Tha defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his parsan, residence, vehicle, office

and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonahble mannar, basad upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence
of a violation of a condition of release. Failure to submit to a search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant shall not
reside at any location without having first advisad ather residents that tha pramises may be subject to searches pursuant to
this condition. Additionaily, the defsndant shali obtain written verification from other residents that said residents
f—\ . ack_nowfedga the existence of this condition and that their failure to cooperate could result in revocation, This
. . --acknowledgemant shall be provided to the U. S. Probation Office immediately upon taking residency.
The defandant shall abide by the "Special Financial Conditions® enumeratad in Miscsllaneous Order Number M-128, filed with
tha Clark of the Court on March 18, 1992, '

_OJ

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this judgment, the defandant shall not commit another federal, state,
or local erime. In addition:

1} The defendant shalf not leave the judicial district without the permission of tha court or probation officer.

2) Tha defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officar and shall submit a truthful and
complets written report within the first five days of sach month.

3] Tha dafendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and fallow tha instructions of the prebation officer.

4} The defendant shall support his or har dependents and meat other family responsibilities. ' '

5} Tha dafandant shall work regularly at a lawful ocoupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.

8] The defendant shall notify the probation officer within geventy-twa hours of any change in residence or employmant.

7]  The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distrihute or administer any
narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as proscribed by a physician.

8) The defendant shall not fraquent placas where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administared.

8] The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in eriminal activity, and shall not esscciste with any person convicted
of a felony unless grantad parmission to do so by the probation officer.

10} The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall parmit canfiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.

11} The defendant shall notify the probation officer within saventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officar,

12} The defendant shall not enter into any agreemant to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcemant agency without

f»\ the permission of the court.
© %) As directed by the probation officer, the dafendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s

criminal record or personal history or charactaristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirmm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirsment.

14} The defondant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U, S, Probation Offica.
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{ “efendant: FREDDIE LEONARD FEAGANS, IV

“Case Number: 96 CR-161-002-BU

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE

RESTITUTION
The defendant shaﬂ make restitution in the total amount bf 35,000, as to Count 1.

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the foliowing amounts:

Name of Payee ' Amount of Restitution
Bank of Dklahorha ' ' - 52.637.76
Attn: Lowell Faulkenberry :

PO Box 2300

Tulsa QK 74192

Bank of America $1,032.82
Attn: Joy Savino '
{ westigation Services Unit #3259
(455 Market Street, 10th Floor
San Francisco CA 94103

PNC Bank $1,322.42
Attn: Charlatte Fletcher

Security Services

Citizens Plaza

Louisville Kentucky 40296

Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s).

Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while
in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from
custody, any unpaid balance shail be paid as a condition of supervised release, except no further payment
shall be required after the sum of the amounts actually paid by all defendants has fully covered the
compensable injuries.

v

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here.
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* efendant: FREDDIE LEONARD FEAGANS, IV
Case Number: 96-CR-161-002-BU

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual 'findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 10

Criminal History Category: 1

Imprisonment Range: 10 months to 16 months
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years

Fine Range: $ 2,000 to $ 20,000
Restitution: $ 25,043.07

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.
Ful_l restitution is not ordered for the following reason{s): because of the defendant’s inability to pay.'
The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court

finds no reason to depart fram the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.

At~




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT F I L E D

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA JUL 28 1997
Phil Lombardi, ¢
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) US. DISTRICT COURT
)
Plaintiff, )
)
v ) No. 91-CR-55-B
DAVID WAYNE COLE, ) Guly e
) ENTERED 0N oo Y
Defendant. ) R U.‘ 30 1997

RDER

Before the Céurt are the Motioriit.o'Vacaté, Set Aside, or Coﬁéct Sente.nce pursuah’t to 28
U.S.C. §2255 (Docket No. 32) and the Motion Requesting Assistance of Counsel (Docket No. 34)
filed by defendant David Wayne Cole (“Cole”™). Cole argues that his conviction for using and carrying
" a firearm during a drug trafficking offense, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §924(c), should be vacated in
light of the United States Supreme Court’s ruling in Bailey v. Um‘te;i States, 116 §.Ct. 501, 506
(1995).

In the case of an indigent plaintiff, the Court has discretion to appoint an attorney to represent
the indigent plaintiff where, under the totality of circumstances of the case, the denial of counsel
would result in a fundamentally unfair pr.oceeding. McCarfhy V. Wéinberg, 753 F.2d 836, 839-40
(10th Cir. 1985); Swazo v. Wyoming Dep't of Corréctz’ons State Penitentiary Warden, 23 F.3d 332,
333 (10th Cir. 1994). The Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals recently reiterated the factors to be
considered in deciding whether to appoint counsel: ““the merits of the litigant’s claims, the nature of
the factual issues raised in the claims, the itigant’s ability to present his claims, and thé/ cormplexity
of the legal issues raised by the claims.”” Rucks v. Boergermann, 57 ¥.3d 978, 979 (10th Cir. 1995)

(quoting Williams v. Meese, 926 F.2d 994, 996 (10th Cir.1991). The issue in this motion is not |



. complex. Jd. Allthe facts necessary to adjadicate Cole's §924(c) challenge are sst forth in the trial

transcripf, which the Court has reviewed. Further, finding the record suflicient, the Court concludes
that an evxdentlary hearing is not requ1red Swazo, 23 F.3d at 333 (right to counsel in §2255
proceeding when evidentiary hearmg is required). Accordmgly, the Court denies Cole's request for
assistance of counsel in the prosecution of his §2255 motion. (Docket No. 34).

On June 27, 1991, Cole was convicted of three counts of a Superseding Indictment after a
jury trial: Counts T - bank robbery in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§2113(2) and (d); Count 11 - using and
carrying a firearm during and in relation to the bank robbery in violation of 18 U.S.C. §924(c)(1); and
Count I - possession of a firearm after a former felony conviction in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§922(g)
and 924(a)(2).

The conitested count, Count I1, specifically charged that

“...On or about the 26th of April, 1991, in the Northern District of Oklahoma, the
defendant DAVID WAY'NE COLE, knowingly used and carried a firearm, to wit;
a handgun, during and in relation to a crime of violeace for which he may be
prosecuted in a court of the United States, to wit: Bank Robbery, in violation of Title
18 United States Code, Sectlon 924(c)(1). '

(emphasis added). The Court instructed the jury on the pre-Bailey definition of “Uses or Carries a

Firearm”; to wit,

Uses or Carries a Firearm - Defined

The phrase “Uses or Carries a Fircarm” means having a firearm, or
firearms, available to assist or aid in the commission of the crime charged in Count
One of the Indictment.

In determining whether the defendant used or carried a firearm, you may
consider all of the factors received in evidence in the case including the nature of _
the underlying crime of violence alleged, the proximity of the defendant to the
firearm in question, the usefulness of the firearm to the crime alleged, and the
circumstances surrounding the presence of the firearm.

The government is not required to show that the defendant actually
displayed or fired the weapon. The government is required, however, to prove

- beyond a reasonable doubt that the firearm was in the defendant’s possession or

2



- . under the defendant’s control at the time a ctime of Yiol_é;nge_ was c_o;runitte@"
This instruction, though correct at the time of trial, is in error after Bailey in which the Supreme
Court defined “use” of a firearm as “active employment” of a firearm. Id. at 506. Bailey
requires the government to prove the defendant actively employed a firearm in the commussion of

a violent crime; i.e, “brandishing, displaying, bartering, striking with, and most obviously, firing or

attempting to fire, a firearm.” Id. at 508.

Because Cole was charged under both the “use” and “carry” prongs of §924(c)(1), the

Court must determine whether either prong may serve as a basis for upholding his conviction. /d

at 509; United States v. Richardson, 86 F.3d 1537, 1546-47 (10th Cir. 1996). The evidence that

Cole “used” a firearm during the bank robbery consists of the following: when Cole approached

the teller, Zina Erristsen, he told her he had a gun while patting the area around his waist line, and

: derhéﬁding":'allzthe “fifties, hundreds and twenties” in her bank drawer. Trial transcript, p. 4-5.

According to the prescriptions of Bailey, the Supreme Court noted that “even an offender’s
reference to a firearm in his possession could satisfy §924(c)(1),” if it is a reference “calculated to
bring about a change in the circumstances of the predicate offense.” Jd. at 508. Although Cole
did not “brandish” or “display” any firearm during the _robbery, he did verbally and dt_emonstfably
refer to a firearm he was carrying under his shirt to effect the robbery. The Court believes that
such would fall within the “active employment” definition of “use” set forth in Bailey.

However, whether or not the evidence is sufficient to support Cole’s conviction under the

"The jury was given a duplicate instruction on “Uses and Carries a Firearm -- Defined” which added the
following paragraph defining “firearm™:
The term “firearm” means any weapon which will or is desipned to or may readily be converted o

expel 2 projectile by the action of an explosive; the frame or receiver of any such weapon; or any
destructive device.

Although the definition of firearm is correct, the rest of the instruction is no longer valid after Bailey.

3



S use prong of §924(c) 1t is clearly sufﬁcwnt to support hlS conviction under the “ca.rty’ prong
To prove that Cole carried a firearm under §924(c), the government had o establlsh that he
possessed a firearm through dominion and control and transported it during and in relation to.the
bank robbery. The evidence adduced at trial in support of Cole’s carrying a firearm during the
bank robbery inctudes (1) the victim teller Zina Ernstsen’s testimony that Cole told her he had a
gun while patting his waistline, Trz'al trqnscrzpt,' pp. 4-5, 13, 17-1 8,. and (2) the testimony of
Sidney Roan who observed Cole running away from the bank and down the street holding a
bundle of money in one hand (“that smoke was coming out of”) and a dark blue automatic .45
caliber or 9 mm gun in the other, Triui franscript, pp. 40-56. Based on this evidence, a
reasonable jury could conclude that Cole was carrying a gun when in the bank committing the
robbery and when running away from the bank. This in fact is what the Tenth Circuit concluded
- in affirming the oonviction_ on appeal:

The teller testified that the robber was this defendant and identified him in
court. She said he told her twice that he had a gun, and patted his stomach area as
he said it. Even though all three employees identified the defendant, none actually
saw a gun. The first and only person to see the gun was Roan, who testified that
he saw the gun in the defendant’s hand as he fled the bank. Roan stated that the
gun was a blue automatic pistol, either .45 caliber or 9mm. Roan also testified that
he owned a handgun. The jury was not unreasonable in believing that Roan saw a
gun in the defendant’s hand as he left the bank after the robbery.

The defendant contends that Roan’s testimony must be discounted because
the defendant had too much money to carry it all in one hand, hence he would not
have had a hand free to carry the gun. However, the jury was shown the
surveillance film which clearly showed the defendant reach for the door with an
empty hand as he left the bank. Hence, Roan’s testimony cannot be discounted by
this court. '

The jury was not unreasonable in believing that Roan saw a gun in the
defendant’s hand as he left the bank after the robbery. The jury was, then,
reasonably able to find that the defendant must have had the gun with him during
the robbery. The conviction appealed from is affirmed.



United States v. Cole, 1992 WL 139330 at *1 and *2 (10th Cir.1992). The Court thus finds that
théfe ans §uﬁicient evidence fof'a..reaso.n.abl.c jury to conclude t'ha.t Cole carried a firearm dﬁﬁﬁg
and in relation to the bank robbery. Richardson, 86 F 3d at 1549.

In accordance with the above ﬁnﬂings, Cole’s motion to vacate his conviction under
§924(c)(1) is denied.

N
SO ORDERED THIS :2 ,i ‘ﬂéy of July, 1997,

THOMAS R. BRETT -

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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~ | UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
. 'Northern District of Oklahoma  EnTeRED ON BoCKET

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA DATE _7-L9-G 7

V. Case Number 97-CR-07-01-K

CONSTANCE L. ANDERSON | FILED

Defendant. .
N JUL % 9 1997
JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE

i Phil Lombardi, Clerk
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987} U.SI. D?sn'}eﬁ:rtlcou?etr

The defendant CONSTANCE L. ANDERSON was represented by Stephen B. Riley.

The defendant pleaded guilty Aprll 8 1997 to Count 1 of the tnfermatlon Accordlnglv the
defendant is adjudged guilty of such count(s), involving the following offense(s):

Date Offense Count,
Title & Section Nature of Offense Concluded Number(s)
18 USC 1344(1) Bank Fraud 10/30/94 1

' As pronounced on July 17, 1997, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984,

it is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 50, for
count{s} 1 of the Information, which shall be duye immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shali notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the é"l day of %, , 1997,
nghu QO m—\
_ Y

Hon\_?ab[e Teﬁry C. Kern, Chief
United States District Judge

¢ efendant’s SSN: 440-40-6218
Defendant’s Date of Birth: 12/2/55 '
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: 222 Cedar Street, Neptune Beach FL 32266
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£ Nefendant: CONSTANCE L. ANDERSON
Case Number: 87-CR-07-01-K

IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of O months.

2 T A
RETURN
i have executed this Judgment as follows:
Defendant delivered on to _ — . _
at _ , with a certified copy of this Judgment.

" United States Marshal

By

Deputy Marshal
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£ efendant: CONSTANCE L. ANDERSON
Case Number: 97-CR-07-01-K

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of five (5}
years.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;
shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court (set forth below); and shall comply w1th the following addlt:onal conditions: '

1. The defendant shall report in person to the probatlon office in the dlstr:ct to whlch the defendant is released within 72 hours
of release from the custady of the Bureau of Prisons.

2. If thiz judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs, of rastitution obllgatlon, it shall be a condition of supervised release
that the dafendant pay any such fine, assessmaents, costs, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commencemant of the
term of supervised release,

3. The defendant shall not own or posseass a firearm or destructive device.

4. The defendant shall be placed oan hame dstantion to include electronic monitoring at the discretion of the U. 8. Probation Office
for a period of four (4] months, to commence within 72 hours of sentencing data. During this time, the defendant shall remain
at place of residence axcept for employment and ethar activities approved in advance by the probatlon office. The defendant
shall maintain a telephone at place of residencé without any special services, modems, answerlng machines, or cordlass

f’\\ telephones for the above period. Tha defendant shall wear an electronic device and shall observe the rules specified by the
£ % - Probation Office. The entire cost of this program shall be paid by the United States Probation Office.

5. " The defendant shall abide by the "Special Financial Conditions” enumerated in Miscallaneous Ordar Number M-128, filed with
the Clerk of the Court on Mareh 18, 1992,

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this judgmant, the defandant shall not commit another federal, state,
or local crime. In addition: :

1) The defendant shall not laave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer.

2} The defendant shall report ta the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shail submit & truthful and
complate written report within the first five days of each month.

3) The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.

4] The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities.

%) The defendant shall work regulariy at a lawful cocupation unless excused by the prebation officer for scheoling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.

68} The defendant shall notify the probation officer within sevanty-twa hours of any change in residence ar amployment.

71 The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, usae, distributa or administer any
narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphsrnalia ralatad to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.

8} The defendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administered.

9)  The defendant shali not associata with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any person convicted
of a telony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer,

10} The defendant shali permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.

11} The defendant shall notify tha probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by 3 law anforcament
officer.

£ 2] The defendant shall not anter into any agresment to act as an informer or a speclal agent of a law enforcamant agency without
" . ¢ . the permigsion of ihe court.

13) As direstad by the prebation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may ba cccasionad by the defendant’s
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall parmit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
canfirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.

14) The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U. S. Probation Office,
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£ efendant: CONSTANCE L. ANDERSON |
Case Number: 97-CR-27-01-K
RESTITUTION AND FOREEITURE
RESTITUTION

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $15,000, as to Count 1.

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

Name of Payee Amount of Restitution
Bank of Oklahoma $15,000

Attn: Kyle Hart

PO Box 2300

Tulsa OK 74192

Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma

for transfer to the payee(s).
< - Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid during
the period of supervised release, '

Any payment shali be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here.
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Jefendant: CONSTANCE L. ANDERSON

Case Number: 97-CR-07-01-K

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report, except: to
reduce loss amount to between $20,000 and $40,000. The Court found that the amount of loss was
overstated, lowering loss amount to more than $20,000 but not more than $40,000.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 8

Criminal History Category: |

fmprisonment Range: 0 months to 6 months
Supervised Release Range: 3 to 5 years

Fine Range: $ 1,000 to § 1,000,000
Restitution: $ 52,655.25

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.
Full restitution is not ordered for the following reasont(s): because of the defendant"s' inability to pay.

£ . The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
- Northern District of Oklahoma

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v. g Case Number 96-CR-161-004-H
ENTERED O DOCKET
ALAN DALE NUCKOLLS i RETOF I L
Defendant. LRTE JUL 25 1947 . E -D
i
JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE o 23 o9 ﬂ’
' [For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 198700, Sh E}Omb
: Tiu'c;ny

ﬁ:sm;a : ‘a&r
The defendant, ALAN DALE NUCKOLLS, was represented by John C. Harris.

On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Counts 2 & 13 of the Second Superseding
Indictment.

The defendant pleaded guilty April 10, 1997, to Count 1 of the Information. Accordingly, the
_defendant is ad;udged guilty of such count(s), mvolwng the followmg offense(s): '
. Dats Offense Count

: ,..Iutle&Sactuon _Mﬂ_gﬁm _ . — : _ Concluded Nusnber(s}
| 18USC 924lc)  Possession of Firearm During the - T- A

Commission of a Drug Trafficking Crime

As pronounced on July 10, 1397, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 4 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing R_eform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shali pay to the United States a special assessment of § 50, for
count(s) 1 of the Information, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within

30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address untit all fines, restltutlon, costs, and special
assessments mnposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the 2.3 *day of _ Turwr , 1997.

+

The Honorable Sven Erik Holmes
United States District Judge

mefendant 3 SSN 327- 58 5083 : Um?ed Stares Disiict Louet Vo (

| Nostham Districs of Okichoms )
sefendant’s Date of Birth: 2/25/62 o ]a::, pf;;:;? gvgr - ;:r sy
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: 2203 E. Mohawk Blvd., Tulsa OK 741510%9 copy of e origingl on e ;

?]"' Fombardl, Dk

&"70 7/ ' . | “Depuiy

in this court.
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Judgment--Page '2 of 4
¢ efendant: ALAN DALE NUCKOLLS |
case Number: 96-CR-151-004-H
IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 60 months, to run consecutively to any other tarm of imprisonment.

The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal.

RETURN
| have executed this Judgment as follows:
Defendant dslivered on to | o
at , with a certified copy of this Judgment.
' ~ United States Marshal
By

Deputy Marshal
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Judgmen —-Pag.e Jof 4
{““efendant ALAN DALE NUCKOLLS

<case Number: 96 ‘CR"151-004-H
SUPERVISED RELEASE
Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of three {3)

years.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime:
shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shail comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court {set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1. Thae dafendant shali report in parson to tha probatlon offica in the district to whlch tha dafandant is releasad within 72 hours
of release from the custody of the Bureau of Prisons.
2. If this judgment imposses a fine, special assessment, casts, of restitution abligation, it shall be a condition of supervised release

that the defen_da_nt pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commencemant of the
taerm of superviead release.

3. The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm or destructive device. :
4. The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of tasting and treatment (to includa inpatient) for drug and aleohol
abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released from the progrem by the Probation Officer.

5. Tha defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a Unitad States Probation Officer of his parson, residence, vehicle, office

and/or business ot a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, besed upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence
of a viclation of a condition of relsasa. Failura to submit to a search may ba grounds for revacation. The defendant shall not
reside at any location without having first advisad other residents that the premises may ba subject to searches pursuant to
this cendition. Additionally, the dafendant shall obtain written varification from other residants that sajid residants
) acknowledge the existence of this condition and that their failure to cooperate could result in revocation.  This
-+ acknowledgement shall be provided to the U. S. Probation Offlce immediately upon taking residency.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state,
or tocal crime. In addition:

1) The defendant shall not leava the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer.

2] The defendant shall report to the praobation officer :as directad by tha court ar probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of each month.

3] The defandant shall answar truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.

4] The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other family responsibilities,

5} The defendant shall wark régularly at a lawful cceupation unlass excused by the probation offlcar for schooling, training, or other
accaptable reasons.

8) The defendant shall notify the prahation officar within saventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment.

7)1 The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of aloohol and shall not purchase, possess, usa, distribute or administer any
narcotic or othar controlled substance, or any paraphebnalia related to such substances, except as proscribed by a physisian.

8) The defendant shail not frequent places whare controlled substances ara illegally sold, usad, distributad, or administered.

9) Tha defendant shall not associate with any parsons engagad in criminal activity, and shall not assoclate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer.

10) The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.

11} The defandant shail notify the probation officer within seventy- two hours of being arrestad or questionsd by a law enforcement
officer.

12} The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to aot as an rnforrnar or a spatial agent of a law anforcament agency without

" the parmission of tha court.

P?} As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasionsd by the defendant’s
.+ eriminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation offlcar to maka such notifications and to

confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.

14} The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directad by the U. 8, Probation Qffice.
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Judgment--Page 4 of 4
¢ efendant: ALAN DALE NUCKOLLS

Jase Number: 96-CR-151-004-H

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: n/a
Criminal History Category: n/a
Imprisonment Range: 60 months
- Supervised Release Range: 2 t0 3 vears
Fine Range: $Cto ¢ 250,000
Restitution: _ $ n/a

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for bv application of the guidelines.

~
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

a " Northern District of Oklahoma

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v, ' o Case Number 96-CR- 163-001-H f/ |
| - envenen ow oooker B p I
MARIO RUVALCABA-ZAMBRANO JL 2 5 W E
Defendant. DT ;UL 5
1 ; zg
AMENDED JUDGMENT INA CRIMINAL CASE u ”Wornb, 97
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987) * ‘ﬁmgfgg“ﬁlc?}ccfer
Correction of Clerical Mistake (Fed. R. Crim. P. 36) TR O uRT

The defendant, MARIO RUVALCABA-ZAMBHANO was represented by Craig Bryant.

On motion of the United States the court has dlsmlssed count(s) 1, 2, & 3 of the Supersed:ng
Indictment.

The defendant pleaded guilty February 19, 1997, to Counts 1 & 2 of the Information. Accordingly,
the defendant is adjudged guilty of such count(s}, involving the following offense(s):
Cate Qffense Count

,.J;!Iia & Section Nature of Offonse _Concludad Numberis}
18 USC 371 Conspiracy ' ' ' T 10/3/96 1

26 USC 7206(2) Fraud & False Statements 4/16/96 2

As pronounced on June 27, 1997, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 6 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 12884,

it is ordered that the defendant shali pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 200, for
Counts 1 & 2 of the Information, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shali notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the _Z 3 K‘day of 7:;. v

7 .
The Honorahle ‘Sven Erik Holmes
United States District Judge )

#efendant’s SSN: 559-47-0544 _ | o _ Uu,fad Stares bsstt:c;ﬁzuxf% [N
| Uefendant’s Date of Birth: 3/7/56 ositn Bt o DR,
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: 7471 E. 48 Street, #83-1, Tulsa OK 741 ?“i?}’ “a‘frt g:; oot o6 bl

in ﬂ‘b Uy

‘ P Lombadi, Uerk

3/ | . (12 7}\@@0‘4
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- f ‘efendant MARIQ RUVALCABA ZAMBHANO
© Case Number: 96-CR-163-001-H
IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 15 months on Counts 1 and 2, said counts to run concurrently, each with the other.

The defendant shall surrender for service of sentence at the institution desmnated by the Bureau of
Prisons before 9:00 a.m. on July 27, 1997,

RETURN

| have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendénﬁ delivered on to _ _ _ . _
at _ , with a certified copy of this Judgment.

United States Marshal

By

Deputy Marshal
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Judgment--Page 3 of 6
(" efendant: MARIO RUVALCABA-ZAMBRANO |

Case Number: 96-CR-163-001-H
SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of three {3)
vears on Counts 1 and 2, said counts to run concurrently, each with the other.

- - While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;
shall not iltegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court {set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1. The defendant shall report in person to the probation office in the district to which the defendant is released within 72 hours
of ralease from the custody of the Buraau of Prisons.
2. If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs, or restitution obligation, it shall be a conditicn of supervieed release

that the defendant pay any such fina, assessments, costs, and rastitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the
tarm of suparvised reiease.

3. The defendant shail not own or possass a firearm or destructive davica, :

4, The dafendant shail submit to a search conducted by a Unitad States Probation Officer of his person, residence, vehicle, office
and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonabla mannar, basad upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence
of a violation of a condition of release. Failure to submit to a search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant. shall not
reside at any location without having first advised other residents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuent to
this condition. Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents that said residents
acknowlodge the oxistence of this condition and, that their failure to cocoperate could result in revocation. This
acknowledgement shall be provided to tha U, S. Probation Office immediately upon taking rasidency.

ﬁo_ﬂ-’i’. The defandant shall abide by the "Spacial Financial Condmons enumerated in Mlscailaneous Order Number M-128, filed w:th
T4 :the Clerk of the Court on March 18, 1992, '
6. The dafendant shall cemply with all laws and regulations of the Internal Revenues Service.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this judgment, tha defendant shall not commit another fedaral, state,
ar local crima. In addition:

1}  The defandant shall not leava the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer.

2} The defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by ths court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
camplata writtan report within the first five days of each month.

3) Thae defendant shall answer truthfully all inguiries by tha probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officar.

4} The dafendant shall support his or har dependents and maet other family responsibilities,

5) The defendant shall work regularty at a lawful cecupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or othar
accaptable reasons.

8) The defendant shall notify the probation officar within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment.

7) Tha defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcotic or other controllad substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.

B} The defendant shall not frequant places where controlied substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administered.

9} The defendant shallnot associate with any persons angaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer,

101 The dafendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or alsewhara and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer. '

11} The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officar.

12} The defandant shall not enter into any agreemant 10 act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency withaut

m the permission of the court.

I3) As directad by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be ccoasioned by the dafandant’s
criminal record or personal histary or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement,

14) The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U, S. Probation Offica.
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¢ efendant: MARIO RUVALCABA-ZAMBRANO
~ase Number: 96-CR-163-001-H

FINE
The Court has determined that the defendant does not have the abiiity to pay interest, and it is
accordingly ordered that the interest requirement is waived.
The defendant shall pay a fine of $ 3,000, as to Count 1. This fine shall be paid in full immediately.
Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate

Financial Responsibility Program. Upon releas_é from custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid during the
term of supervised release.

£

if the fine is not paid, the court may sentence the defendant to any sentence which might have bsen
originally imposed. See 18 U.S.C. § 3614. ' ' '

This amount is the total of the fines imposed on individual counts, as follows: $3,000 on Count 1.
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Judgment--Page 50f6
/efendant: MARIO RUVALCABA-ZAMBRANO '

Case Number: 96-CR-163-001-H

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE

RESTITUTION
The defendant shall make restitution in Count 2 in the total amount of $4,370.

The defendant shall make restltutlon to the followmg persons in the following amounts:

Name of Paxe Amgun; of Restltut:o
Internal Revenue Service 4:370

3651 South Highway i-35

Stop 2002, AUSC

Austin, TX 787867

Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern sttnct of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s).

~ " Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount riot paid immediately shall be paid while
in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from
custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition of supervised release.

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here.
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_ _ Judgmént-?Page 6 of 6
£ . sfendant: MARIO RUVALCABA-ZAMBRANO |
case Number: 96-CR-163-001-H

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 13

Criminal History Category: I

Imprisonment Range: 12 months to 18 months
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years R

Fine Range: - $ 3,000 to $ 30,000
Restitution: ' $ 4,370

~ The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.

~
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United States Distrier Lovet ) '-55 . -
Korthern District of Oklehoma )

1
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~  UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
-+~ = Northern District of Oklahoma |
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
v : Case Number 96-CR-146-03-+
. ENTEAED ON GOCIET Lg D
DAMONN SANDERS a/k/a SPIDER -
Defendant. perE. 22 8L L2 3 1995

Phit 1o
JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE 13, OisTioarg

(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987) b S’WF j
The defendant, DAMONN SANDERS a/k/a SPIDER, was represented by James O. Goodwin. -
'On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Count 2 of the Indictment. _'

The dsfendant pleaded guilty January 23, 1397, to'Count 1 of the Indictment. Accordingly, the
defendant ig adjudged guilty of such count(s}, involving the following offense(s):

_ Date Offanse Count
- Title & Section Nature of Offanse Conclude _ " _Numberls)
£71 USC 841(a)(1) Distribution of Cocaine Base O 9/5/96 '

As pronounced on July 18, 1997, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984,

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
counti(s) 1 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

g #P ,
Sigred this the _ 23 day of Towy , 1997.

et G | Mt Gl
in thlisLm;:rsv ST : The #Honcrable Sven Erik Holmes

Phif Lomhardé, Clerk

- _ United States District Judge
G Coce.s

Depuly

Yefendant’s SSN: 446-74-2942
efendant’s Date of Birth: 5/23/77 _
Defendant's residence and mailing address: 2421 N. Yorktown Ave, Tulsa OK 74068

D
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£ efendant: DAMONN SANDERS a/k/a SPIDER ' I

~ase Number: 96-CR-148-01-H
IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is'hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprigoned for a term of 18 months.

The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: that the defendant be
placed in the next available shock incarceration program to serve this term.

The defendant shall surrender for service of sentence at the institution designated by the Bureau of
Prisons before 10:00 a.m. on august 25, 1997.

RETURN
| have executed this Judgment as follows:
Defendant delivered on ' to _ _ _ _ _ -
at . with a certified copy of this Judgment.
: United States Marshal
By

Deputy Marshal




.

v AD 245 S (Rev. 7/93)(N.L. QOkla. rev.) Sheet 3 - Supervisad Relsass

Judgment--Page 3 of 5
£ efendant: DAMONN SANDERS a/k/a SPIDER ' '
- .ase Number: 96-CR-146-01-H

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of three (3}
years. ' ' ' '

While on supervised releass, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime:
shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court (set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:;

1. The defendant shall report in person to the probation office in the district to which the dafendant is released within 72 hours
of relaase from tha custady of tha Bureau of Prisons,
2. If this judgment imposes a fine, special agsessment, costs, or restitution obligation, it shall he a condition of supervisad release

that the defendant pay any such fina, assessments, costs, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commancement of the
term of supervised release,

3. The defendant shall not own or possess a firsarm or destructive device. .
4. The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment {to include inpatient} for drug and alcohol
abuse, as directed by tha Prabation QOfficer, until such time as released from the program by the Probetion Officer.

&, Tha defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his parson, rasidenca, vahicle, office

and/or business at a reasonabis time and in a raasonhabls mannar, based upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence
of a violation of a condition of releass. Failure to submit to & search may be grounds for revacation. The defendant shall nat
reside at any location without having first advisad athar rasidents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant to
this condition. Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents that said residents
" acknowledge the existence of this condition and that thsir faifure to cooperate could result in revocation. This
£ - acknowledgement shail be prowdad to the U S Probailon Offlca lmrnedtatalv upon takmg rasldancy.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the daf&ndant s on supervused relaasa pursuant to this judgment, tha defandant shall not commit another federal state,
or local crimea. In addition:

1} Tha defendant shall nat lsave tha judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer.
2)  The defondant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or prohatlon officar and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of sach month.
3} The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probatlon officer and follow tha :nstructlons of the probation officer.
4) The defendant shall support his or her dependants and mast othar family responsibilitiss.
§) The defendant shall work regularly at a fawful occupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or othar
acceptable reasons. _
B} The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment.
7) The defendant shall rafrain from excassiva use of alcoho! and shall not purchase, possaess, use, distribute ar administer any
narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.
8! The defendant shall not frequent places where controllad substancas are illagally sold, used, distributed, or administared.
9) The defandant shall nat associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any person convigted
of a felony unless granted permission to do sc by the probation officar.
10} The defendant shall.permit a prabation officer to vigit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.
11} The defendant shall notify the probation officar within sevanty-two haurs of baing arrastad or questienad by a law enforcemant
officar.
12) The defandant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency W|thout
tha parmission of tha court,
13] As directed by thae probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be ogcasionad by the defendant’s
Kf’.\‘ criminal record or parsenal history or characteristics, and shall parmit tha probation offlcer to make such notifications and to
© 1 confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.
14} The defendant shall submit to urinalysis tasting as directed by the U. S. Probation Office.
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f"efendant DAMONN SANDERS a/k/a SPIDEFI
-~ Jase Number: 96-CR-146-01-H

FINE
The Court has determined that the de:fendant does not have the ability to pay interest, and it is
accordingly ordered that the interest requirement is waived.
The defendant shall pay a fine of $ 500.. This fine shall be paid in full immediately. Any émount not
paid immediately shall be paid while in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility

Program. Upon release from custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid durmg the term of supervised
release.

If the fine is not paid, the court may sentence the defendant to any sentence whlch mlght have been
originally |mposed See 18 U.S.C. § 3614. '




*

AD 245 S {Rev. 7/93}(N.D. Okla. rev.} Sheet 7 - Statame_nt of Reasons

Judgment--Page 5 of 5
¢ Defendant: DAMONN SANDERS a/k/a SPIDER |
~ Case Number: 96-CR-146-01-H

STATEMENT OF REASONS
The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report except USSG
§2D1.1(b)}{1} is not applicable. Therefore the total offense level is reduced two (2) levels to offense level

11.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Qffense Level: 11

Criminal History Category: I

Imprisonment Range: 15 months to 21 months
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years

Fine Range: $ 3,000 to $ 30,000
Restitution: $n/a

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of ‘the defendant’s inability to pay.

‘The sentence is within the guideline range that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

£ . ... . Northern District of Oklahoma ;
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA | | ¢ /
v : |  Case Number 97-cn~ooa-oopj I I
| NTERED ON DOUKET E
A etendant, | @m._.“’”-t . ey,

ﬂhﬂ

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE~ ? ""“f &é&f
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987)

The defendant, MARY LEE DAVID, was represented by Craig Br?ant.

The defendant pleaded guilty March 14, 1997, to Count 1 of the Indictment. Accordingly, the
-defendant is adjudged guilty of such count{s), involving the following offensal(s}:
' Data Offanse Count

" Title & Section _Nature of Offense Concluded Number(s}
18 USC 656 Misapplication of Financial - 04/30/95 1

_ Institution Funds
""" As'pronounced on July 16, 1997, the defendaiit is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984. '

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 50, for
count(s) 1 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address untii all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the 22 ‘E(Jday of :Z ;‘J 1997.
I1sited Stotes Dismcék(n;:rt )} 3
No:rham District of Gklohome ) . ‘

haraby cerfify thatthe { me%omg - /
i ﬂtrue copy af the crigingl on i _ Thé Honorable Sven Erik Holmes
in rb;s U ond Lombordi, Clark - United States District Judge

Daputy

efendant’s SSN: 496-52-7045
Jefendant’s Date of Birth: 07/23/46 _ _ _ _
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: 14th & Washington, PO Box 332, Sarcoxie MO 64862
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¢ efendant: MARY LEE DAVID
Case Number: 97-CR-003-001-H
_ IMPRISONMENT

| The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 12 months and one (1) day.

The defendant shall surrender for service of sertence at the institution designated by the Bureau of
Prisons before 12:00 p.m. on August 15, 1997. -

RETURN

| have executed this_JUdgment'as follows:

Defendant deliveredon = = to
. ‘ W-ith a certified copy of this Judgment,

United States Marshal

By

Peputy Marshal
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f’“‘tefendant MARY LEE DAVID

Judgment--Page 3 of 5

Case Number: 97-CR-003-001-H

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of three (3)

years. -

1.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime:
shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court {set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

The defendant shall report in person to the probation office in the district to which the defendant is

released within 72 hours of release from the custody of the Bureau of Prisons.

If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessmant, costs, or restitution obligation, it shall be a

condition of supervised release that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and’

restitution that remain unpaid at the commencemant of the term of supervised release.
The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm or destructive device.

The defendant shal} abide by the "Special Financial Conditions™ enumerated in Miscellaneous Order
Number M 128 filed with the Clerk of the Court on March 18, 1892,

STANDAFID CONDITIONS DF SUPEHVISION

Whila the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this 1udgment the defendant shall net commit ahother federal, state,

or local erimea. In addition:

"
2}

3
4)
5)

8)
7

2
1]

10)
11
12

13)

s

The defendant shall not lgave the judicial district without tha permission of the court or probation officer.

The dstendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and -

complete written report within the first fiva days of saach month.

The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the anstructlons of the probation officer.
The defendant shall support his or her dependsnts and maat other family responsibilltiss.

Tha dafendant shall work regularly at a lawful cocupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.

Tha defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment.

The defandant shall refrain from excessive use of sicohol and shall not purchase, possass, use, distribute or administar any
narcotic or other controilad substanca, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.
The defendant shall not frequent places where centrolled substances are illegally sold, usaed, distributed, or administerad.

Tha defendant shail nat associate with any parsons angaged in eriminal activity, and shall hat assaciate with any parson canvicted
of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer.

The defendant shall parmit a probation officar to visit him or her at any time at home or slsewhare and shall psrmit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.

Thea defendant shattnotify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrested or quastionad by a law enforcemant
officer.

The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without
the permission of tha court. ' )

As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
criminal racord or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit tha probation officer ta maka such notifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such netification requirement,

The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directsd by the U. 8. Probation Office.
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¢~efendant: MARY LEE DAVID

- Judgment—Page 4 of 5
" Clase Number: 97-CR-003-001-H . |

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE
RESTITUTION

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $12,000, as to Count 1.

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

Name of Payee mount of Restitutio
Citizens Bank of Tulsa | o $12,000

2500 W. Edison
Tulsa OK 74127

Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s). '

~ Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while

 custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from
custody, any unpaid balance shalt be paid as a condition of supervised release.

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here.
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¢ efendant: MARY LEE DAVID

<ase Number: 97-CR-003-001-H

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 13

Criminal History Category: -

Imprisonment Range: 12 months to 18 months
Supervised Release Range: 3to 5 years '
Fine Range: $ 3,000 to § 1,000,000

Restitution: _ $ 42,842

The fine is waived or is below the guidsline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.
Full restitution is not ardered for the following reason(s): because o_f the defendant’s inability to pay.
The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court

. finds no reason to depart from the sentence calted for by application of the guidelines.

L e T, e
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~ _ UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

. w 18
Northern Dlstnct of Oklahoma < B9 D
iy _ 7
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA & 018'3’-,’5}3!;2 o
. oStk
v, Case Number 97-CR-012-001-K T
MARK ALLEN DUNLAP | E0D: 7-A3-7 7
Defendant.

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
{For_Offenses Committed_On' or After N_ovembé; 1. 1987)

The defendant, MARK ALLEN DUNLAP, was represented by Craig Bryant.

On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Counts 1, 2, 3, 8, 7, through 15 of the

Indictment.

The defendant pleaded guilty Aprit 14, 1997, to Counts 4 & 6 of the incllctment Accordmgly, the

defendant is adjudged guilty of such count(s], involving the following offense(s):

: _ Date Offense Count
f"—" itle & §gg§|gg_ : Nature of 0ffa_-'—1§° - _ - Qggglgded Numberis) .
18 USC 924(c)  Possession of a Firearm During 11297 4
A Crime of Violence
18 USC 924{c) | Possession of a Firearm During _ ' 1/14/97 6

A Crime of Violence

As pranounced on July 14, 1997, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 6 of _

this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pur’suant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the Umted States a spemal assessment of $ 200, fnr

counti{s} 4 & 6 of the Indictment, which shall be due m\\‘rltfdlately

——

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the Unlted States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special

assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Slgned this the _/ f day of 2!!#;: , 1997,

célmm

| The Honorable/Terry’C. Kern, Chief
p‘-efendant’s SSN: 447-74-3129 _ - United States Dlstrzct Judge
Defendant’s Date of Birth: 3/22/74 :
Defendant’s residence and mailing add_ress 13042 E. 16th, Tulsa OK 74554
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efendant: MARK ALLEN DUNLAP ' '
Case Number: 97-CR-012-001-K

IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be

imprisoned for a term of 300 months. This term consists of 60 months as to Count 4, and 240 months as

to Count 6, to run consecutively to each other and consecutively to any other term of imprisonment, for a
total sentence as to both counts of 300 months.

The defendant is remanded to tha_ custody .of the United States Marshal.

RETURN

I have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant deliverad on ' to __ - '
at . ' , with a certified copy of this Judgmgnt.

United States Marshal

By'

Deputy Marshal
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Jefendant: MARK ALLEN DUNLAP
Case Number: 97-CR-012-001-K

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of five (5)

years. This term consists of three (3) years as to Count 4, and two {2) vyears as to Count 6, to fun
conssecutively, each with the other.

‘While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;
shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court (set forth below), and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1. The defendant shall raport in person to the probation office in tha d;stnct ta which tha defandant is released wlthm 72 hours
of release from the custody of the Buraau of Frisons.
2. If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs, or restitution obligation, it shall bs a condition of supervised reloase

that the defendant pay any such fine, assassmants, costs, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the
tarm of supervised release.

3. The defendant shall not own or passass a firsarm or destructive devica.

4, The defendant shall successfuily participate in a program of testing and treatment {to include inpatiant) for drug and alcohol
abuse, as directed by the Probation Officar, until such time as released from the program by the Probation Officer.

5, The defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his parson, residence, vshicle, office

and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonable mannar, basad upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence
of a violation of a condition of release. Failure to submit to a search may he grounds for revocation. The dafsndant shall nat

- reside at any location without having first advised other residents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant to

this condition. - Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents that said residents
-acknowledge the existence of this condition and that their failure to coaperata could result in revocatlon. This
acknowledgamant shall be providad to the U. S. Probation Office immediately upon talung residency.

STANDARD C_ONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

Whila tha defandant is on supervised release pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall not comm;t another federal, state,
or local crime. In addition:

1} The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without tha parmission of the court or probation officer.

2} Tha defendant shall report to the probation officer ae directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of each month.

3) Tha defsendant shall answaer truthfully all inguiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.

4) The defendant shall support his or her dependents snd meet cther femily responsibilities.

B} The defendant shall work ragularly at a lawful occupation unlass excused by ths probation officer for schooling, training, or other
acceptable reasons.

8) The defsndant shall notify the probation officar within savanty-twa hours of any ‘changs in residenca or ampioymant.

7] The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, sxcept as prescribed by a physician.

8} Tha defendant shall not fraquent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administered.

8} The defandant shall not associate with any persons sngaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any person conwcted
of a feleny unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer,

10) The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband obsarvad in plain view by ths probation officer,

11} The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-twe hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officar.

12} The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an |nf0rmar ora speclai agant of a law aniorcemant agency without

&N the permission of the court.

*

"3} As diracted by the probation oﬂlcer, the defendant shall natify third partias of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
“ " eriminal record or pefsonal history or characteristics, and shall pefmit the probation officer to make such hotifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.
14) The defandant shall submit to urinalysis tasting as diractad by the U. S. Prohatian Office.
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©  sefendant: MARK ALLEN DUNLAP
 Case Number: 97-CR-012-001-K

FINE

The Court has determined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest, and it is
accordingly ordered that the interast requirement is waived. ) '

The defendant shall pay a fine of $ 1,000 as to Count 4. This fine shall be paid in full immediately.
Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate
Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid during the
term of supervised release. '

If the fine is not paid, the court may sentence the defendant to any sentence which might have been
originally imposed. See 18 U.S.C. § 3614,

‘oW
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~Defendant: MARK ALLEN DUNLAP |

2ase Number: 97-CR=012-001-K
RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE
RESTITUTION

The defendant shall maks restitution in the total amount of $9,726.02,

This amount is the total of the restitution imposed on individua! counts, as follows: $328.09 on Count 4, and $9,398.93 on
Count B. S

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the fallowing amounts:

Name aof Payee _ _ Amount_of Restitution
Mary Frederick | $1,500.00 as to Ct. 8

8135 E. 16 Street
Tulsa OK 74112

All Stata Insurance Co. ' $8,734.17 as te Ct. 6
Attn: Nick Degresso '

© Claim # 4654217548
5800 E. Skelly Driva

* Tulya OK 74135

Pagers-R-Us $212.10asto Ct. €
Attn: Maurince Lifley ' . :
1209 S. Memorial

£ ulsa OK 74112

Mary Stuffiebeam $260.00asto Ct. 8
1317 W. Los Angeies Strest
Broken Arrow OK 74011

tucky Stop Food Store $289.00 as to Ct. 6
Attn: Munzoor Mian

8108 E. 26th Place

Tulsa OK 74129

Subway $80.00 as to Ct. B
Attn: George Charlton

7004-A East Admiraf Place
Tulsa OK 74112

Subway $321.60asto Ct. B
Attn: Dave D'Arkamgaslo .

7120 5. 92 £, Ave. #2108

Tulsa OK 74133

Subway : _ ' _ $329.09 as to Ct. 4
Attn: Robbie Adams :

2801 S, Harvard Ave.

Tulsa OK 74114

~ Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma for transfar ta the
payee(s).

'Rastitution sﬁall be paid in fdli immediately. Any amount not paid immadiatsly shall be paid while in custody through_ 'ghe
Bureau of Prisons’ Inmata Financial Responsibility Program. Upon releage from custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition
of stpervised reloase.

Any payment shall ba divided proportionataly among the payees named unless otherwisa spacifiad hera. -

o oy B s T T
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Jefendant: MARK ALLEN DUNLAP _ o
Case Number: 97-CR-012-001-K

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence feport.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: n/a
Criminal History Category: n/a
Imprisonment Range: 60 months Count 4

_ 240 months Count 6
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years Count 4

2 to 3 years Count 6

Fine Range: $0to $ 250,000 Counts4 &6
Restitution: $9,726.02

The sentence is within the guideline range, that does not exceed 24 months, and the court funds no
reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.
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~ UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT ¥ 7 Z
% -~ Northern District of Oklahoma o 2 D
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA G (o% 199,
' R .
v, | Case Number 97-CR-032-001 12 ”’grrdéo%;??k
JACK WESLEY CHAMBLEE go D! 7-23-97

Defendant.

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987}
The defendant JACK WESLEY CHAMBLEE was represented by Rick Couch.

The defendant pleaded guilty Aprit 15, 1997, to count(s) 1 of the Indictment. Accordingly, the
defendant is adjudged guilty of such count(s}, involving the following offense(s):

Date Offansa Count
Title & Ssction Nature of Offense Concluded Number[s[
18 USC 371 Conspiracy 2/9/97 1

this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
count{s} 1 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within

30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special

assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the L day of , 1997,

Frr P

The Honorahl errf C. I'(ern, Chief
United States District Judge

fefendant’s SSN: 448-70-0229
Jefendant’s Date of Birth: 10/10/62
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: 200 W. 12th Street, Pawhuska OK 74056

o As preneunced on '.J'u'!y' 1'.4, 1 997 the ':d'e'fendaﬁt' is suent'e'h:ee& as pre'\ii"ded' in pagee'zﬂ fhreugh 5o0f
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ﬁefendant JACK WESLEY CHAMBLEE '
‘Case Number: 97- CR-032 001-K
IMPRISONMENT
The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
imprisoned for a term of 13 months.
The defendant shall surrender for service of sentence at the :nstltutlon designated by the Bureau of
Prisons before 12:00 p.m. on August 15, 1997.
_p;-,-‘\:'!
RETURN
| have executed this Judgment as follows:
Defendant delivered on to_ S — —
at ' ' . . with a certified copy of _th'is Judgmer_th
P Oried Staas Marahal T e
By

Deputy Marshal
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“efendant: JACK WESLEY CHAMBLEE ' o
‘Case Number: 97-CR-032-001-K

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of three (3)
yvears. '

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;
shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court {(set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1. The defendant shall report in person to the probatlon office in the district to which the defendant is released within 72 hours
of raleasa from the custody of the Bureau of Prisons.
2. If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs, or restitution obligation, it shall be a condition of supervised release

that the defendant pay any such fine, assasamants, casts, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the
term of supervised roloase.

3. 'Tha dafendant shall not own or possass a firearm or destructiva devics,

4, The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment fto include inpatient} for drug and alechol
abusa, as diracted by the Probation Officer, until such time as released from tha program by the Probation Officer.

5. The defendant shail submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person, residence, vehtcle office

and/or business at a reasonabla time and in a reasanabla mannar, basad upon reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence
of a vialation of a condition of release. Failure to submit to a search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant shall not
reside at any location withaut having first advisad other residents that the premises may be subject to searches pursuant to
this condition. Additionally, the defendant shall obtain written verification from other residents that said rasidents

£ scknowledge the existance of this condition "and that their failure to cooperate could result in revocation. This
© .- . acknowledgement shall be provided to the U. 8. Probation Office immediately upon taking residency.
B&. Tha dafendant shall abida by the "Special Financial Conditions" enumerated in Miscellanesous Order Number M-128, filed with

the Clerk of the Court on March 18, 1992,
STANDARD CONDlTlO:N_S O_F_ SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised releese pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall not commit another foderal, state,
or local erime. In addition: . :

1} The dofendant shall not leave the judicial district without tha permission of the court or probation officer.

2} Tha dsfendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthfut and
complate written report within the first five days of each manth,

3) The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probstion officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.

4) Tha defendant shail support his or her dependents and maest other family rasponsibilities,

8} The dafendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation uniess excused by the probation officer for schaoling, tramlng, ar ether
acceptable reasons,

8) The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventv-twe hours of any changs in residence or employment.

7} The defendant shall rafrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administar any
narcotic or other controlied substance, or any paraphernaha ralated to euc:h substances, except as prescribed by a physician.

8} Tha defandant shall not frequent places whare controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administared,

9} The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any persan convicted
of a falony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer.

10} The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or har at any tima at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer.

11} Tha defendant shall notify the prabation officar within saventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a [aw anforcamant
officer.

12) Tha defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a spscial agent of a law enforcement agency without

T the permission of the court.

13) As directed by the probation officer, the dafandant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
criminal recard ot personal history or charactaristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such natifications and to
confirm the defendant’s complianca with such natification raquiramant, _

14} The defsndant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U. $. Probation Office,
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mefendant: JACK WESLEY CHAMBLEE o

Case Number: 97-CR-032-001-K

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $13,350.96.

RESTITUTION_AND FORFEITURE

'RESTITUTION

Judgment--Page 4 of 8

_The defendant shalt make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

Name of Payee

Dollar Saver Food Warehouse
1012 N. Radic Road

Durant, OK 74701

Attn: Tod Huffman

Warehouse Market

810 N. Lynn Riggs Blvd.
Claremore, OK 74017
Attn: Dan Meredith

Super H. Foods
West Gentry
Checotah, OK 74426
Attn: Chaff Solemnan

Warehouse Market
12601 E 86th St. North
Owasso, OK 74055
Attn: Mike Hames

Brattain Foods
P.O. Box 919
Muskogee, OK 74402
Attn: Barbara Hodges

Apple Market

316 Bast Main St.
Pawhuska, OK 74056
Attn: Jim Newcomb

Homeland #5435
12572 E 21st

Tulsa, OK 74129
Attn: Joe Humphrey

Albertson’s

13328 E Sist

Tulsa, OK 74135
Autn: Jack Williams

Amount of Restitution |

$456.95

§298.95

$356.95

$356.95

$992.47

$285.95

$335.25

$235.85
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Defendant: JACK WESLEY CHAMBLEE
Case Number; 97-CR-032-001-K '

Price Mart #5
9136 E 31st
Tulsa, OK 74145
Attn; Becky Noah

Price Mart

1000 West Will Rogers Blvd,

Claremore, OK 74017

- Arm: Kenny McBride

Warehouse Market #35
250 South SH97

Sand Springs, OK 74063
Attn: Jerry Carroll

Warehouse Market #27

2041 W, Houston

Broken Arrow, OK 74012
Attn: Bill Clak

~ Albertson’s #2225
“3612 S. Elm Place

Broken Arrow, OK 74011
Aun: Tammy Gunnells

Reasor's Tnc.

200 West Choctaw
Tahlequah, OK 74464
Attn: Daryl Buck

Warehouse Market

1700 Wood Drive
Okmulgee, OK 74447-6824
Attn: General Magager

Albertson’s Store Comp. Office
250 Parcenter Blvd.,
Boisa, ID 83716

Attn: Department R

‘Warehouse Market
623C N. Peoria
Tulsd, QK 74126
Attn: Jobn Carnes

'RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE CONTINUED

Ji.ldgement#-Page 50of 8

$285.95

$621.80

$335.25

$285.95

523885

$1,963.60
$285.95

$571.10

$385.95




AO 245 8 (Rev. 7/93)(N.D. Okla. rev.) Sheet 6 - Restitution and Forfeimare

Defendant: JACK WESLEY CHAMBLEE

~ Case Numher 97- CR—032~001-K ' _ ' .

' - _ ' . . Judgement--Page 6 of 8
o R TI TI AND FORFEI D ' -

Stax Groceries ' £39.95
2301 8. Washington

Bartlesville, OK 74006

Attn:; Margie Lewis

Buy-for-Less _ $15%.57
2415 E. Admiral P

Tulsa, OK 74110

Attn: General Manager

Office Depot $928.30
7950 E. 51st '

Tulsa, OK 74145
Attn: Hoffman

Office Depot $386.64
2010 S. Sheridan

Tulsa, OK 74112
Atmn: Bremt Harrison

May’s Drug Store $116.29
6705 E 81st, Suite 155
Tulsa, OK 74133

Office Max $321.42
3605 Warrensville Center Road '
Sk H s, OH 44122

Price Mart #7 $285.95
7114 8, Sheridan Rd.
Tulsa, OK 74133

Kong's Komner _ $37.18
14591 §. Hw66

Clarmore, OK 74017

Attn: Perry

Payless Shoesource $57.99
998 W. Will Rogers Bivd.

Claremore, OK 74017

Attn: Shelly Macom

Tacora Mart ' ' $24.51
Rt 5 Box 473 ;
Clarmore, OK 74017

Attn: Esther




AD 245 § (Rev. T/99)(N.D. Okla. rev.) Sheet 6 - Restitution and Forfeiture

Defendant: JACK WESLEY CHAMBLEE
Case Number: 97-CR-032-001-K

- o _ . Judgement—Page 7 of 8
- RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE CONTINUED =~

Stax Groceries $34.01
809 8. Wood Drive

Olonulgee, OK 74447

Attn: Les Brown

Homeland ' $2,320.20
Loss Prevention Department i

P.C. Box 25008

Qklahoma City, OK 73125

Attn: Ernie Deyle

Atoka Foods Center $345.25
901 Mississippi

Atoka, OK 74525

Attn; Robert Powell

Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District
of Oklahoma for transfer to the payee(s).

Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be
paid while in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program.
Upon release from custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition of supervised
release, except that no further payment shall be requlred after the sum of the amounts paid by
. all defendants has fully covered the compens1ble injury.

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise
specified here.
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Defendant: JACK WESLEY CHAMBLEE '
Case Number: 97-CR-032-001-K '

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline apphcatmn in the presentence report,
except the Court made a finding that the defendant was an organizer or léader of the criminal

activity and increased the offense level 4 points pursuant to USSG §3B1.1(a). The Court further

found that more than minimal planning under USSG § 2F1.1(b)(2)(B) was not applicable when
an enhancement for role in the offense is applied. Based on these findings, the Court determined
that the offense level was 16, with a reduction of 3 levels for acceptance of responsibility,
resulting in a total offense level of 13 with a guideline imprisonment range of 12 to 18 months.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 13

Criminal History Category: I

Imprisonment Range: 12 months to {8 months
Supervised Release Range 2 to 3 years

Fine Range: $ 3,000 to $ 30,000

Restitution: _ $ 13,350.96
The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability
to pay. '

The sentence departs from the guideline range upon motion of the government, as a result
of the defendant’s substantial assistance.
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~  UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT _ 7 ILEp
-~~~ Northern District of Oklahoma 23 190
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA | Phiy ’

hil Lom
| | 3. SRR, Clor
v. _ Case Number 97- CR 013- 01 K

JASON MICHAEL STANFORD | Cobn! 7-3 3-97

Defendant.

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987)

The defendant, JASON MICHAEL STANFORD, was represented by Charles L Woodstock.
On motion of the United States the court has dlsmlssed Count 1 of the Indictment.
The defendant pleaded guilty Aprit 10, 1997, to Count 2 of the lndlctment Accordingly, the

defendant is adjudged guilty of such count(s), mvolvmg the foilowing offense{s):

_ Date Otfense Count
Title & Section Nature of Offensa Concluded Number(s)

18 USC 924{c) Carrying a Firearm During A 12/26/96 2
Crime of Violence

As pronounced on July 14, 1997, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 6 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
count(s) 2 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the LA day of 9’%47 . 1997.
Bead A Vi | |
KX

The Hono Terry C. Kern, Chief
United States District Judge

{efendant’s SSN: 444-70-7330
vefendant’s Date of Birth: 12/5/74
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: Tulsa County Jail, 500 S. Denver, Tulsa OK 74103
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Defendant: JASON MICHAEL STANFORD . '

Case Number: 97-CR-013-01-K
IMPRISON_MENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be

imprisoned for a term of 60 months. This sentence shall run consecutively to any other state for federal
sentence of imprisonment. '

The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: that the defendant be
incarcerated at a Bureau of Prisons’ facility specializing in comprehensive drug treatment, and that the
defendant be incarcerated at FCI in El Reno.

The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal.

RETURN

| have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on _ to _ _ _
at . with a certified copy of this J_udg__n"lent.

U_nited States Mérshal

By

Deputy Marshat
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Defendant: JASON MICHAEL STANFORD oo T :
Case Number: 97-CR-013-01-K

SUPERVISED RELEASE

- Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of three {3}
years. '

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, stéte, or local crirhe;
shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court {set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1. Tha defendant shall report in person to the probation office in the district to which the defendant is raleasad within 72 hours
of ralease from the custody of the Bureau of Prisons.
2. If this judgment imposes a fine, spacial assessment, costs, orrestitution obligation, it shall be a condition of suparvised release

that ths dafandant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and restitution that romain unpaid at the commancement of the
‘term of supervised releass.

3. The dafandant shall not own or possess a firearm or destructive device,

4, The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment {to include inpatient} for substance abuse,
as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released from the program by the Probation Officer.

5. The defendant shall submit to a search conducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person, residence, vehicie, office

and/or business at a reasanable time and in a reasonable manner, based upen reasonable suspicion of contraband or evidence
of a violation of a condition of releasa. Failure to submit to a search may be grounds for revocation. The defendant shall not
reside at any location without having first advised othar rasidents that the premises may be subject ta searches pursuant to
this condition. Additionally, the defendant shall cbtain written verification from other residents that said residents

f.-'! % - acknowiedge the existence of this condition and that their failure to cooperata could result in trevocation.  This

acknowledgement shall be provided to tha U. 8, Probation Office immediately upon taking residency.

STANDAFID. CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defandant is on supervised releass pursuant to this judgment, the defandant shall not commit anothar faderal, stats,
or local crime. In addition:

.13 The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer,
2)  The dofendant shail report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probat:on officer and shall submit a truthful snd
complete writtan report within tha first five days of each month.
3} The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probatlon officer and follow the instructions of the prcbation officer.
4} The defandant shall support his or her dependents and meet ather family responsibilities. '
B} The defendant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other
_acceptable reasons.
8} The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or employment. _
7} The defendant shail rafrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician,
8} Tha dafendant shall not frequent places where controlled substances are illegally sold, used, distributed, or administered.
9  The defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any parson conwctad
of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer.
10} The defendant shall parmit a probation officer ra visit him or her at any time at home or slsewhasre and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband obsarved in plain view by the probation officer.
11} The defandant shall notify tha probation officer W|thm saventy-two hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officer.
12} The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without
.  tha permission of the court. '
£ 3] As directed by the probation officer. the defendant shall notify third parties of riske that may be cccasionad by the defendant’s
crirninal racord or personal history or charactsristics, and shall parmit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.
14} Tha defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U. 5. Probation Office,
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£ Defendant: JASON MICHAEL STANFORD | o
Case Number 97- CR 013 01- I(

FINE

The Court has determined that the defendant does not have the ability to pav interest, and it is
accordingly ordered that the interest requirement is waived.

The defendant shall pay a fine of $ 5,000, as to Count 2. This fine shall be paid in full immediately.
Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate
Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid during the
term of supervised release.

if the fine is nat paid, the court may sentence the defendant to any sentence which m:ght have been
originally imposed. See 18 U.S.C. § 3614.

~
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*- ‘Defendant: JASON MICHAEL STANFORD '

Case Number: 97-CR-013-01-K

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE

- RESTITUTION
The defendant shail make restitution in the total amount of $1,450.56.

The defendant shall maks restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

Name of Payee | | _ Amount of Restitution
Patricia Wong ' $269.00
11217 E. 63rd Street

Tulsa OK 74133

Allstate Insurance o $1,181.56

5800 E. Skelly Drive, Ste 100
Tulsa OK 74135
' Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s).
Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while

in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from
custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition of supervised releass.

Any payment shall be di\fided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here.
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Case Number: 97-CR-013-01-K

STATEMENT OF REASONS

. The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: n/a

Criminal History Category: n/a

Imprisonment Range: 60 months
Supervised Release Range: ' 2 to 3 years

Fine Range: $ 0to $ 250,000
Restitution: $ 1,450.56

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guzdellne range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT I L E D
' FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOI\M

| JuL 22 wf/rﬁ
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ; oni Lompardi, Gtk
Plaintiff, ) |
vs. ; No. 89-CR-90-C /
BYRON W. MATTHEWS, ;
Defendant. ;

T sE T oy g e
CITEED O CoCHET

LT3

RDER TR

Currently pending before the Court is the motion filed by defendant, Byron Matthews, seeking
o vacate, set aside, or correct his sentence, pursuant to 28 US.C. §2255,

On August 1, 1989, Matthews was named in a three Count Indictment alleging controlled
Eub‘st'énce and firearms x.rio'.]at.ionsg On M;a.rﬁh 28, 1990,. a jury found Matthews guiity of Count One,
conspiracy to possess with intent to distribute cocaine base, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 846; Count
Two, possession with intent to distribute cocaine base, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1); and
Count Three, use of a firearm in a drug trafficking crime, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 924(c). On July

11, Matthews was sentenced to 360 months imprisonment on Counts One and Two, and 60 months

- imprisonment on Count Three, to run consecutive to Counts One and Two. On appeal, the Circuit

affirmed Matthews’ convictions for conspiracy and for possession with intent to distribute cocaine
base, but reversed Matthews’ § 924(c) conviction, as well as Matthews’ sentence insofar as it

includes a kilogram of cacaine base distributed prior to his involvement. 1J.S. v, Matthews, 942 F 2d

779 (10th Cir.1991). Matthews was resentenced on February 7, 1992, to 210 months imprisonment

.on Counts One and Two. Matthews did not further appeal his sentence or conviction.




. Pn rto addressing the menits of Matthew’s motion, the Court notes that § 2255, as amended

in April of 1996, provides for @ one-year limitations period in which o filea § 2255 motion
date on which the judgment of conviction becomes final. The Court further notes that if it were to

apply this limitations pentod to Matthews, his present motion would be time-barred. However, the

Tenth Circuit recentlj; mandated a one;year grace period in _whiéh to allow the filing of § 2255

motions, holding that “prisoners whose convictions became final on or before April 24, 1996 must

file their § 2255 motions before April 24, 1997.” 1LS.v. Simmonds, 111 F.3d 737, 746 (10th

Cir.1997).

Matthews’ present motion was filed on Aprl 28, 1997, four days subsequent to the expiration
of the one-year grace period. In its response, the government urges that Matthews’ motion is
untimely and barred by the limitations period contained in § 2255. The government maintains that
Ma_tfche__ws’ cqn_vi__gtiqn bgcar_r}g final in 1992 foilowing _Matthews’ resentgncing and his failure to
appeal the revised judgment and sentence. Thus, the government argues thﬁt since. Maﬁh&vs’ _
conviction became final prior to April 24, 1996, and since he filed his motion after April 23, 1997,
Matthews’ motion must be time-barred.

On May 19, 1997, this Court entered a minute order finding that the government failed to
récognize the “prisoner mailbox rule”, which provides that a prisoner motion is deemed “filed” when
the prisoner delivers such motion to prison authorities for forwarding to the Court. Houston v, Lack,
487 U.8. 266 (1988). Hence, it is not the date of actual filing with the Clerk that is determinative,
but rather it is the date on which the motion was delivered to prison authorities for forwarding that
is relevant. The Court thus directed Matthews to show that his motion was actually delivered to

prison authorities prior to April 24, 1997, and the Court further authorized the government to




supplement its response addressing the appropﬁate issue. The government has declined to
su.]ﬁpléme.nt its .respc..:mse. | Matthews éz.l.h.seqﬁ.ént'ly r'eqltieste'd additional time in which to make the
required showing, énd this Court granted Matthews until June 25 to cbmply, As of this date,
Matthews has failed to comply with the Court’s directive, and he has submitted nothing to
demonstrate that his motion was timely filed.

Thus, since Matthews has failed to show that his motion was delivered to prison authorities
prior to the end of the grace-period of April 24, 1997, and since § 2255 prohibits the Court from
considering motions filed after the expiration of the limitations period, the Court is left with no choice
but to dismiss Matthews’ petition. Tt is also interesting to note that on Matthews’ original § 2255
motion, Matthews hand-printed the date of the motion as being 4- -97. This seems to indicate that

- Matthews may have been aware of the i_'inﬁfations period, he probably knew that he was delivering
- the motlonto __pri:_sc_.m. authqr__ities after th_e _e_x_pir_atiqn _of such limita‘;ion_s_ period, _and he may have
therefore purposeiy orrﬁttéd thé .actu.a.iwdz-iuyno.f. dehver}r .o.ri the motlon, perhaps m ar'1. Ie.ffb.l;t. to. -mli:si;;d
the Court into considering his untimely petition.

Accordingly, Matthews’ motion pursuant to § 2253 is hereby DISMISSED as being time-
barred.

IT IS SO ORDERED this ./ Eﬁi‘ay of Iuly, 1997.

H. Dale Cook
U.S. District Judge




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT F I L ED
FTOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA JUL 29 1997

Phil Lombardi, Clefk

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) U.S. DISTRICT COURT
Plaintiff, ; P
VS, ; No. 90-CR-74-C /
PAUL R. JASTRZEMBSKI, ;
Defendant. ; M e Ll
cevp At G U
ORDER

Currently pending before the Couﬁ is the motion filed by defendant, Paul Jastrzembski, seeking
to vacate, set aside, or correct his senténce, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255,

On July 12, 1990, .Iastrzembski was named in a three Count Indictment for violations of
 controlled subtance laws. O October 22, 1990, Tastrzembski pled guilty to Count One, conspiracy
to manufacture, possess with intent to distribute, and distribute methamphetamine, in violation of 21
U.S.C. § 846. On January 29, 1991, Jastrzembski was sentenced to 300 months imprisonment.
Jastrzembski’s conviction and sentence were affirmed on appeal in an unpublished opinion. U.S. v.
Jastrzembski, 955 F.2d 49 (10th Cir.1992).

On October 29, 1996, Jastrzembski’s present § 2255 motion was filed. Jastrzembski moves
this Court to vacate, set aside, or correct the sentence imposed upon him based on the government’s
failure to prove the type of methamphetamine involved in the present case during the sentencing
hearing. At sentencing, Jastrzembski admitted to producing twelve pounds of pure methamphetamine.
Jastrzembski was sentenced pursuant te the more severe guidelines applicable to cases involving d-

methamphetamine rather than the less scvere guidelines applicable to cases involving I-




_ _methamphetamme On December 2, 1996, the govemment concedecl that, pursuant to recent Tenth
| Circuit precedent, ; hearmg “}ag requ.lred in order to perrmt the government to dem.o.nstrate fhe type
of methamphetamine involved. The government further acknowiedged that it “has the burden of proof
and production . . . to establish the amounts and types of controlled substances related to the offense.
Because the type of methamphetamme is not an element of the crime, it need only be proved by a
: preporxderance of the ewdence at _senteﬁeing US.v. Denmn ,29F. 3d 572 580 (10th Cir. 1994)

cert. denied, 115 5.Ct. 1117 (1995).

A hearing was held on January 23, 1997, in which the government offered evidence related to
the type of methamphetamine involved in this case. During the hearing, the Court was advised that
Jastrzembski’s counsel, Stuart Southerland, was not prepared to cither refute the government’s
evidence or offer evidence in support ef Jastrzembski’s position. The Court thus continued the
: _h_eering, whiuch was ultimately held on J'qu 10, 1997.

The evidence introduced at the hearings clearly revealed tﬁat J; astr..ze.mb. ski acteel .as..tl;e .“eoe.l.c”
for the conspiracy, a fact which Jastrzembski admitted. At the initial hearing, the government
introduced the testimony of Sheriff Larry Fugate who described the laboratory which Jastrzembski
utilized and testified as to its contents, Sheriﬂ‘ Fugate testified that he discovered the lab when he was
called to investigate a homicide at the lab site. Sheriff Fugate testified that the lab contained
glassware, various  chemicals, and other devices necessary for preparing and packaging
methamphetamine,

The government also called Steven Brookman, who is employed by the Oklahoma State
Bureau of Investigation (“OSBI”) and who serves as a laboratory administrator. Agent Brookman

was called to the lab site by Shenff Fugate to investigate a possible clandestine laboratory. Agent




. Brookman searched the lab site, inventoried the items discovered, photographed the site, and sampled
the items. Agent Brookman presented an OSBI Criminalistics Examination Report, which was
prepared by Agent Brookman an.d which reflects the inventory and analysis of the lab. The analysis
revealed methamphetamine and phenylacetone. Agent Brookman testified that, in his experience, he
had previously seen the type of glassware and chemicals seized at the lab at other élandestine
laboratories. Based on his training and experience as a chemist, and spéciﬁcally in methamphetamine
investigations, Agent Brookman testified that the specific type of glassware and chemicals seized from
the lab indicated that di-methamphetamine was being produced. That is, given the setup of the lab and
the chemicals present, a dl-methamphetamine mixture resulted. Agent Brookman further testified that
although he has investigated numerous methamphetamine labs, he has never found a lab that produced
only I-methamphetamine,

. ... Richard Dill, an agent with the OSBT,'was called as a government witness at the initial heariné.
Agent Dill acts as the supervisor of the drug testing portion of the OSBI laboratory in Oklahoma City.
Agent Dill was involved in the investigation of Jastrzembski and his clandestine lab. Agent Dill
testified that he performed an analysis on chemicals discovered at the fab, and phenylacetic acid was
determined to be present. This particular chemical is a precursor that is utilized in the synthesis of
phenylacetone.

Lastly, the government called William Glanville, a senior forensic chemist with the Drug
Enforcement Agency, and an expert in methamphetamine synthesis and analysis. Agent Glanville
testified that he had reviewed the OSBI feports concerning the lab site at 1ssue in the present case,
Based on the lab reports and the analysis of the chemicals seized, Agent Glanville testified that

phenylacetone, or p2p, was involved in the manufacture of methamphetamine. Based upon his training

3
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_and experience, as well as a review of the items seized from the lab, Agent Glanville opined that the

lab vielded a p2p-type process producing dl.-methamphetamine‘ Moreover, Agent Glanville expressed
his opinion that, based on the facts of this case, it would not have been possible to only produce |-
methamphetamine. Agent Glanville testified that, given the p2p process involved in the preparation
of the methamphetamine, the lab was incapable of producing a pure l-methamphetamine mixture.
When the hearing resumed on July 10, Jastrzembski introduced the testimony of Jerry

Thurman, one of Jastrzembski’s co-defendants in the present case. Thurman proposed to offer into

~ evidence a recipe which he had given to Jastrzembski in 1989 to produce methamphetamine, Thurman

testified that this was the only recipe that he knew Jastrzembski possessed. Thurman further tesﬁﬁed
that the methamphetamine that was produceci by the recipe yielded less physiological effects than other |
methamphetamine; e.g., the effects only lasted eight hours rather than two or three days.

Jastrzembski took the stand and testified that the process which was introduced by Thurman
was the process Jastrzembski had used in the preparation of methamphetamine. Jastrzembski testified
that Thurman taught him how to make methamphetamine pursuant to such recipe. Jastrzembski
further testified that although he admitted to producing twelve pounds of pure methamphetamine at
sentencing, he did not really know what he was producing at the lab. Jastrzembski additionally
testified that the physiological effects of the methamphetamine which he produced at the lab were
weaker than those produced by other methamphetamine which he had used.

In rebuttal, the government called Jeffrey Neighbors, who is currently serving a sentence for
offenses involving L.SD, Af the time of his arrest, Neighbors was working on a masters degree in
chemistry. Neighbors testified that Thurman approach.ed him seeking advice on the distinction

between d and l-methamphetamine. Thurman inquired as to the specific methods of producing




N ..n}et_hmnphe_t.ami.:}g. Nei_ghb.ors t_ggtif_ied “that:.Thur_man was trying to come up with a manner of making
either d or l-methamphetamine specifically. Neighbors ﬁiﬁher festiﬁed that Thurman.has”t.old ﬁim that ..
he (Thurman) liked the p2p process better. Neighbors additionally testiﬁed: that Thurman was
researching the manufacturing process for this case, and that Thurman was hoping to get a friend off.
When Neighbors realized that Thurman was planning on perjuring himself in order to assist
Jastrzembski, Neighbors contacted his attorney and the government.

After Neighbors testified, Thurman was again called to the stand. Thurman proceeded to
recant his earlier testimony, and he admitted lying under oath during the hearing. Thurman testified
that the recipe introduced earlier in the hearing was not given to Jastrzembski. The recipe was
designed to produce an outcome solely for his testimony at the hearing. Thurman testified that all the
methamphetamine processes involved p2p, and that he has never seen any process other than one
- involving p2p. 'Thur_man further tesf[iﬁed that _thé mgtha_rnphetarr_line he ;oqked With J astrzémb.ski was
just as strong and potent as any other methémphetarﬁiné he had used. Lastly, Thurman testified that
he had perjured himself in order to help Jastrzembski receive a more lenient sentence.

Given the particular facts of this case and the evidence introduced at the hearing, the Court
finds that the government clearly provéd'that .I astrzembski pfoddced dl-methamphetamine by a
preponderance of the evidence. The testimony and evidence introduced by the government
overwhelmingly indicate the presence of di—methamphetamine, and Jastrzembski’s efforts to refute the
government’s evidence clearly failed. Moreover, the method employed by Jastrzembski in his

unscrupulous attempt to rebut the government’s evidence is shocking.! The false testimony of

! On July 16, the Court received the attached hand-written letter, signed by Jastrzembski, in
which Jastrzembski essentially admitted offering false testimony and evidence at the July 10, 1997,
hearing. ' ' o




e Jastrzembski himself, as well as the subornation of false testimony from Thurman, is nothing less than
reprehensible and constitutes a flagrant abuse of the judicial process.
Since the Court finds that dl-methamphetamine was involved in the present case, and since

it is clear that dl-methamphetamine i§ properly treated as d-methamphetamine for sentencing

purposes, I1.S. v Decker, 55 F.3d 1509 (10th Cir.1995), the Court will not disturb Jastrzembski’s
sentence.
Accordingly, Jastrzembski’s motion pursuant to § 2255 is hereby DENIED.

=74
IT IS SO ORDERED this _ /2~ day of July, 1997.

" H. Dale Cook
U.S. District Judge
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT F 1 L ED

£ | | r ;
| Northern District of Oklahoma JUL 2 3 1997 i
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA K
A Lombard i Slerk
v. ' Case Number 96-CR-161-01-BU ~

ENTERED ON DOCKET

SHARON L. BECK a/k/a SHARON MUNQOZ
Defendant.

DATE_1-23-97

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CAS
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 19

The defendant, SHARON L. BECK a!k/a' SHARON M_UNOZ, was represented by Richard D. Amatucci.

On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Counts 15-25, 29, 30, 32, 46-56, 60, 61,
and 63 of the Indictment. -

The defendant pleaded guilty March 17, 1997, to Count 1 of the Indictment. Accordingly, the
defendant is adjudged guulty of such count(s), involving the following offense{s):

Date Offense Count
_..-;I_‘lt!e & Section __Nature of Offensa . Loncluded Numbaris)

As pronounced on July 1, 1997, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 5 of this
Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a épecial assessment of $ 50, for
count(s) 1 of the Indictment, which shalt be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

~o .
Signed this the Qﬁ day of o , 1997,

United Siqtes Bistiict Coury ) !

Northern District of Oklohoms ) 5

ko "l hereby ?gerv that the
“ T

in this cotrt, gt e orgina on i The Honorable Michael Burrage; Chief
T MWM . | United States pistric Judge

~efendant’s BON: 547-91-9706
Jefendant’s Date of Birth: 10/16/70 _ o
Defendant’s residence and mailing address: 5104 Tango Circle, Anaheim CA 92807

23\
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Judgment--Page 2 of 5
Fbefendant SHARONL. BECK a/k/a SHARON MUNOZ : _
Case Number: 96-CR-161-01 -BU
IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prlsons to he
imprisoned for a term of 21 months.

The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons: that the Bureau of Prisons

designate an institution in the southern California area.

The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal.

RETURN

| have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on __to _
at ' . with a certified copy of this Judgment.

United States Marshal

By

Deputy Marshal

R -/_»...ih.- S o e s ol e e i w e e et e Tt D T i L e T
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. o . L . J\udgment'—-Page 30f5
£ Mefendant: SHARON L. BECK a/k/a SHARON MUNOZ ~

Case Number: 96-CR-161-01-BU

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of three (3)

years.

While on supervised release, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;
shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court (set forth below)" and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1. The defendant shall report in person to the probation office in the district to which the defendant is

released within 72 hours of release from the custody of the Bureau of Prisons.

2. If this judgment imposes a fine, specual assessment, costs, or restltutlon obligation, it shall he a
condition of supervised release that the defendant pay any such fine, assessments, costs, and
restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the term of supervised release.

3. The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm or destructive device.

4, The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment {to include

inpatient) for drug and alcohol abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released
£ from the program by the Probatlon Offlcer

o

The defendant shall abide by the "Specral Financial Conditions" enumerated m M:scellaneous Order
Number M-128, filed with the Clerk of the Court on March 18, 1992.

STANDAFID CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

Whils the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall not commit another faderal, state,
or local crima. In addition:

1y The defendant shall not feave the ‘judicial district without tha parmission of the court or probation officer.

2)  Tha defendant shall report to the probation afficer as directed by the court or probatmn officer and shall submit a truthful snd
complate written raport within the first five days of esch month.

9) The defendant shalt answaer truthfully all inquiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.

4} The defendant shall support his or her dependents and meat othar family responsibilities.

5) The defendant shall work regularly at a Iawful accupation unless excused by the probation officer for schoolrng training, or other
acceptable raasons.

8} The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-fwo hours of any changa in rasidence or employment.

7} The defendant shall Fefrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall net purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphsrnalia related to such’ substances, except as prescribed by a physician,

8} The defendant shall nct fregient places where controlled substances ars |l[agallv sold, used, distributed, or adminigtered.

9) Tha dafandant shall not associate with any persons angagad in criminal activity, and shall not assocrate wrth any pErson convictad
of a felony unless granted permission ta do so by the probation officer.

10} The defendant shail permit a probation officer to visit him or haer at any time at home or elsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by tha probation officer.

11) The defandant shall notify tha probation officer within seventy-two hours of being arrasted or quastionad by a law enforcemant
officar.

£ The defendant shall not enter inte any agresment to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcamant agency without
: © the parmission of tha court.

18} As directed by tha probation officer, the defendant sha!l natify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the dafendant’s

criminal record or personal history ar characteristios, and shall permit the probation officer to maka such notifications and to
- caonfirm the defandant’s compliance with such notification requiremant.
14} The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U. S. Probation Office.

EERLK | B
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_ o o _ Judgment--Page 4 of 5
¢ Defendant: SHARON L. BECK a/k/a SHARON MUNOZ o

Case Number: 96-CR-161-01-BU
RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE
RESTITUTION

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $10,000, as to Count 1.

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

Name of Payee Amount of Restitution
Bank of Oklahoma _ $4,759.89
Attn: Lowsll Faulkenberry

PO Box 2300

Tulsa 0K 74192

Bank of America $4,029.48
Attn: Joy Savino '

Finvestigation Services Unit #3259

" 455 Market Street, 10th Fioor
San Francisco CA 94103

Wells Fargo Bank $174.00
nvestigation Department/Mac 2002-036

9000 Flair Drive, 3rd Floor '

El Monte CA 91735

PNC Bank $1,036.63
Attn: Charlotte Fletcher

Security Services
Citizens Plaza
Louisville Kentucky 40296

Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Caurt for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s). _

Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while
in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from
custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition of supervised release, except no further payment
shall be required after the sum of the amounits actually paid by the defendant, and her codefendants, Freddle

“gagans, Thomas Boggs, and Michae! Galle, has fully covered all of the compensable injuries.

Any payment shall be divided proportionateiy among the payees named uniess otherwise specified here.




-

mefendant: SHARON L. BECK a/k/a SHARON MUNOZ

&
£l
&

AD 245§ (Rev. 7/93)(N.D. Ckie. rev.) Shest 7 - State_ment of Reasons

Judgment--Page 5 of 5
Case Number: 96-CR-161-01-BU

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guidelina application in the presentence report.

" Guideline Range Determined hy the Court:

Total Offense Level: 16

Criminal History Category: |

Imprisonment Range: 21 months to 27 months
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years

Fine Range: $ 5,000 to $ 50,000
Restitution: $ 64,232.84

The fine is waived or is below the guideling range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.
Full restitution is not ordered for the following reasonis): because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines. '

R
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I LED

~  UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 7
"~ Northern District of Oklahoma =~ JUL 2 31897
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA Phil Lombardi, Slerk

v.) - Case Number 968-CR-083-001-B

ROGER EVANS KNOX _ ENTERED ON DOCKET
Defendant. DATE 7"23 *?7

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
(For Of-fensas C_ommitted On or After November 1, 1987)

The defendant, ROGER EVANS KNOX, was represented by Stephen Knorr.
On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Counts 1 through 26 of the Indictment.

The defendant pleaded guilty April 17, 1997, to Count 1 of the Information. Accordingly, the
defendant is adjudged guiity of such count(s), involving the following offense{s}:

Date Qffenss Count
Title & Saction ature Offense _ Conciuded Numbar{s}
.4 USC 2113{b)  Theft of Bank Monies ' R - 4/16/91 1

first paragraph

As pronounced on July 17, 1997, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 4 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

It is ardered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 60, for
count(s) 1 of the Information, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address untii all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the ,;i/ “day of July , 1997.
7
. Northern District of 8 w”/ﬁ%‘@% -
k ¢ trys cony of The Honorable Thomas R. Brett, Senior

_ in this cout ‘ ' United States District Judge

4
stbrdant's SSN: 409-70-9206 )

vefendant’s Date of Birth: 7/1/45

Defendant’s residence and mailing address: PQ Box 320, Norman AR 71960
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“fendant: ROGER EVANS KNOX

Judgment--Page 20of 4

Case Number: 96-CR-083-001-B

PROBATION
The defendant is hereby placed on prob_ation for a term of four (&) year(s).

While on probation, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime; shalil not

illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted
by this court {set forth below}; and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

crima.

13
2}

3}
4}
it 5}

6}

7)

8)
9}

10)

11}

13}

14}

if this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs or restitution obligation, it shall be a
condition of probation that the defendant pay any such fine, assessment, costs and restitution.
The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm or destructive device,

The defendant shall successfully participate in a program of testing and treatment (to include
inpatient) for drug and alcohol abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such time as released
fram the program by the Probation Officer.

The defendant shall be placed on home detention to include electronic monitoring at the discretion
of the U. S. Probation Office for a period of six (6) months, to commence within 72 hours of
sentencing date. During this time, the defendant shall remain at place of residence except for
employment and other activities approved in advance by the probation office. The defendant shall
maintain a telephone at place of residence without any special services, modems, answering
machines, or cordless telephones for the above period. The defendant shall wear an electronic device
and shall observe the rules specified by tha Probatlon Qffice. The entire cost of this program shall
be paid by the defendant.

The defendant shall abide by the "Special Financial Conditions™ enumerated in Miscelianeous Order
Number M-128, filed with the Clerk of the Court on March 18, 1992,

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF PROBATION

While the defendant is an probation pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall not commit another federal, stata or local
In addition:

The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without tha permission of the court or probation officer.

The dafendant shall report to the probation officer ag directed by the court or probation officar and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of each month.

The dafendant shall answer truthfully all inguiries by the probation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.
The dafendant shall support his or her dapsndaits and meat other family responsibilities.

Tha dafendant shail work regularly at a lawful occupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, tralnmg or other
acceptable reasons.

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within saventy-two hours of any change in residence or amployment.

The dafendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcotic or other contrelied substance, of any paraphernalia related to such substances, except ae prescribed by a physician.
The defandant shatl not frequent piaces whare controlled substancas ara illagally sold, used, distributed, or administered.

The defendant shall not associate with any persons sngaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any parson convicted
of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officar.

The defendant shall permit a probation officer to visit him or her at any time at hame or elsewhers and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observed in plain view by the prabation officer.

The defandant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-twa hours of baing arrestad or questioned by a law enforcement
officer.

The defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an mformer ora speclal agent of a law enforcement agency without
the permission of the court.

As directed by the probation officer, the defandant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall parmit the probation officer to make such notifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.

The defendant shall submit to utinalysis testing as directed by the U. 5. Probation Oifice,
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Ty L Judgment--Page 3 of 4
" fendant: ROGER EVANS KNOX I A
Case Number: 96-CR-083-001-B
| | | HESTITUT]DN AND FORFEITURE
RESTITUTION.

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $6,832, as to Count 1.

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

Name of Payee Amount of Restitution
Roger NMorris ' $3,416
PO Box 159

Big Cabin OK 74332

Ruby Marshall | . 3,418
1410 Louisville Street

Claremore OK 74017

" Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s).

Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid during
the period of probation.

;\r'w payment shall be divided proportidhately among the payees named uniess otherwise specified here.
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~ _ Judgment--Page 4 of 4
* fendant: ROGER EVANS KNOX ' B
Case Number: 96-CR-083-001-B

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 10

Criminal History Catsgory: 1

imprisonment Range: 6 months te 12 months
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years

Fine Range: $ 2,000 to $ 20,000
Restitution: $ 6,832

The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the Court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.

KK~




FILED

) ._ | | JUL 171997/~
- UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  pit Lompardi, ¢ J{rk :
NORTHERN DISTRICT_O_F OKLA_HOMA U.S. DISTRICT €O

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Plaintiff

Vs Case Number: 94-CR-048001-E /

CINDI ANN GELBHAR
Defendant

VOK UPERVISED RELEASE

Now on this 11th day of July, 1997, this cause comes on for sentencing concerning
allegations that the defendant violated conditions of supervised release as set out in the
Petition on Supervised Release filed on May 6, 1997. The defendant is present in person
and represented by counsel, Stephen Knorr. The Government is represented by Assistant
U.S. Attomey Charles McLéughlin, aﬁd the United States Probation Office is

represented by Greg Johnson and Doug Burris.

The defendant was heretofore convicted on her plea of guilty to Count One of a one-
count Indictment, charging Misapplication of Financial Institution Funds, in violation

of 1I8US.C. § 656. On June 3, 1994, she was sentenced to zero (0) months custody,




with a five (5) year term of supervised release to follow. Gelbhar was also held liable
for restitution in the amount of $10,500, and ordefed to pay a special. monetary
assessment of $50. The conditiqn_s of _Superﬁsed Release were modified on June 26,
1997, to include five months of home detention with electronic monitoring, and to
participate in a mental health program approved by the probation office, to include

inpatient if necessary:.

On June 18, 1997, a revocation hearing was held regarding the allegations noted in the
Petition on Supervised Release, filed on May 6, 1997, said allegations being the
following: 1) the defendant failed to report as directed for the months of December

1996, and Ianuary Fcbmaly and March 1997 and Apnl 21 and 23, 1997, 2) the

defendant failed to maintain employment as ordered and 3) the defendant fallecl to pay

restitution as ordered. Gelbhar stipulated to the violations at the revocation hearing,

and sentencing was set for July 11, 1997.

On July 11, 1997, as a result of the sentencing hearing, the Court found that the
violations occurred after November 1, 1987, and that Chap.ter 7 of the U. S. Sentencing
Guidelines is applicable. Further, the Court found that the violations of supervised
release constituted Grade C violations in accordance with USSG§ 7B 11 (a) (3, and Fl}at
the defendant's original criminal history category of I was applicable for determining the

imprisonment range. In addition, the Court found that Grade C violations and a




criminal history category of I establish a revocation imprisonment range of three to nine

months. In consideration of these findings and pursuant to LS. vs. Lee, 957 F2d 770

(10th Cir. 1992), in which the Circuit determined that the policy statements in Chapter

7 were not mandatory, but must be considered by the Court, the following was ordered:

The defendant is committed to the custody of the U. S. Bureau of Prisons to be
iinprisoned for a term of six months. The Court will entertain dismissing this order prior |
td the defendant reporting to serve this custody $entencc, if such a motion is made by
the defendant and not opposed by the Government or the probation office. The Court

recommends that Gelbhar be placed at the Freedom Rénch Community Confinement

_ Center to serve thls term The defendant is ordered to pay the remammg restitution of

$10,090. Gelbhar shall report to the facxhty de51gnated by the Bureau of Pnsons on

December 10, 1997, at 10:00 a.m.

he Honorable James Q. Ellison
nited States District Judge




UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE =~ = & v e
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
| )
Plaintiff, )

) |

v, )  No 97-CR-32K -
| )
ANGELINA HUFFMAN, )

) FILED

Defendant. }

JUL 16 1997 {f}i’)

: Phil Lombardi, Clerk
' F DISMISSA U.8, DISTRICT COURT

This matter comes on for consideration of the government's Motion to Dismiss the Indictment

as against the defendant, Angelina Huffian, without prejudice.

For the reasons stated in the government’s motion, the Court finds that the Indictment should
be dismissed. Therefore, the government's request will be granted.
IT IS THEREFORE THE ORDER OF THE COURT that the Indictment in the above-styled

case will be dismissed as to defendant Angelina Huffiman, without prejudice.

Done this /. 5 day of 0914/&4, , 1997,

4

- waﬂcﬁiw_ﬁ

TERRY C. KERN

PRESIDING UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE




R - e L i R T B SRRt T SRR TR (R

FILED
- IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
<o NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA JUL 1 41997
Phil
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ; U8, sommbardi, Clerk
Plaintiff, )
) .
-V§- ) No. 96-CR-57-B /
)
DAVID THOMAS FULLER, )
_ )
* Defendant. )
C o Duu "\LL r
Comz JUL 5 1857

ORDER

Now on this /2 é/ ‘day of July, 1997, this cause comtes on to be heard in the matter of the

plaintiff's Motion for Leave to Dismiss, without prejudice, the Indictment against defendant

* DAVID THOMAS FULLER in the above styled cause. The Court finds that said request ought

to be granted and the Indictment against defendant DAVID THOMAS FULLER is dismissed,
without prejudice.

IT IS SO ORDERED. s

THOMAS R. BRETT Senior J udge
United States District Court

e
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  JUL 10 1997 Z,Lf
“ FOR THE NORTHERN BISTRICT OF OKLABOMA ~ ~ =~

Phil Lombardi, Clerk
U.S. DISTRICT CDURT

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
Plaintiff, 3
vs. ; No. ( 94:CR-121-C /
ALVA SPRAGUE, 3 -
Defendant. ; LNTERED 0«4 Luu o
ORDER

Currently pending before the Court is the motion filed by'defendént, Alva Sprague, secking
to vacate, sét aside, or correct his sente.nce, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255. |

On May 3, 1995, Sprague was named in a seventeen Count Second Supersedmg Indictment
" for inolanons of several controlled substance, ﬁrearms, and related laws. On August 21 1995 .
Sprague pled guilty to Count One, continuing criminal enterprise, in violation of 21 U.S.C.
- §848(a),(c), and (d), and Count Three, cpnspiracy to possess firearms in relation to drug trafficking
crime, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §371. On Novémber 7, 1995, Sprague was sentenced to 360 months
imprisonment on Count One and 60 months imprisonment on Count Three, to run concurrently.
Sprague did not appeal his conviction or sentence.

On April 16, 1997, Sprague’s present § 2255 motion was filed. Sprague moves this Court
to vacate, set aside, or correct the sentence imposed upon him on the following grounds: 1) the
conviction was obtained by coercion; 2) the plea of guilty was not made voluntarily or with the
understanding of the charges against Sprague; 3) failure of counsel to file a requested appeal; and 4)

ineffective assistance of counsel.




Pnor to addressmg the mcr:ts of Sprague 8 monon the Court notes that § 2255 as amended
in Apnl of 1 996 prowdes for a one-year Ilm1tat1ons perlod in whxch to ﬁle a § 2255 motion aﬁer the
date on which the judgment of conviction becomes final. However, the Tenth Circuit recently
mandated a one-year grace period in which to allow the filing of § 2255 motions, h01ding that
“prisoners whose convictions became final on or before April 24, 1996 must file their § 2255 motions
before April 24, 19977 U.S. v. Simmonds, 111 F.3d 737, 746 (10th Cir.1997). Since Sprague’s
present motion was filed prior to Aprit 24, the Court concludes that said motien is not time-barred.

Typically, “§ 2255 is not available to test the legality of matters which should have been raised

on appeal.” 11S v Walling, 982 F.2d 447, 448 (10th Cir.1992). A failure to raise an issue on direct

appeal acts as a bar to raising the issue in a § 2255 motion, unless Sprague ¢an show cause and actual

prejudice, or can show that a fundamental miscarriage of justice will result if his claim is not

‘addressed. U.S. v, Allen, 16 F.3d 377, 378 (10th Cir.1994). This procedural bar applies to coliateral

attacks on a defendant’s sentence, as well as his conviction, Id, S.ince. the government.raised this
procedﬁral bar in the instant ¢ase, this Court must enforce it and hold Sprague’s claims barred unless
cause and prejudice or a miscarriage of justice is shown. Id,

In order {o evade this brocédufal bar, Sprague relies upon the weil—establiéhed exception, and
now the universal claim, of ineffective assistance of counsel. “A defendant may establish cause for
procedural default by showing he received ineffective assistance of counsel.” U.S_v. Cox, 83 F.3d
336 (10th Cir.1996). To succeed on a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, Sprague must satisfy
the rigid standard contained in Strickland v. Wag.hingtgn, 466'U.S. 668 (1984). The Supreme Court
in Strigk.]g: nd held that.a claim 6f ineffective asSiétaﬁce cﬁ‘ counsel has ':tw_o compoﬁénts. First,

Sprague must show that his attomey “made errors so serious that counsel was not functioning as the




“counsel” guaranteed . . . by the Sixth Amendment.” Id. at 687. “The proper standard for attorney

performance is that of reasonably effective assistance.” Id. Therefore, to succeed, Sprague must

show that. his counsel’s performance fell Below an objective standard of reasonableness. Furthermore,
Sprague must show that “the deficient performance prejudiced the defense.” 1d. However, “a court
must indulge a strong presumption that counsel’s conduct falls within the wide range of reasonable
professional assistance . . ..” Id. at 689. For the reasons stated below, the Court concludes that
Sprague failed to satisfy the Strickland standard for demonstrating ineffective assistance of counsel.

Sprague first attacks his conviction, maintaining that his guilty plea was the result of coercion
and that he did not understand the c_h_arges against hini or the consequences of his plea. The record

itself, however, disputes Sprague’s assertions. Duaring the change of plea hearing held on August 21,

1995, the Court engaged in an extensive colloquy with Sprague in order to ensure that his rights were

protected and that he acted completely voluntarily and without pressure or coercion. Prior to

recei_ving Sprag_ue’s guilty plea, the Court __speciﬁbally advised Spraglie that he was facing
imprisonment of no less than 20 years and that he could be imprisoned for life. The Court
additionally advised Sprague that if he pled guilty to more than one Count, the sentences could be
cumulative. Sprague represented to the Court that he did, in fact, understand what the period of
imprisonment might be if he pled guilty. Sprague also represented that he understood that a very
substantial fine could be imposed if he were to plead guilty. Sprague’s actual sentence of 360 months
imprisonment and $1,500 fine was cleafly within the range of punishment which Sprague understood
he might receive. The Court therefore has difficulty understanding Sprague’s argument that he |
entered his plea without full knowledge of the consequences.

The record also rebuts Sprague’s contention that his plea was involuntary and coerced. The

W




Court specifically asked Sprague whgth;:_f his pleas of guilty would be made freely and voluntarily.

S pfagﬁe answered in .the.aﬂihna'tive, and he advised the Court that his decision to enter pleas of guilty

was based on his own free will. The Court then specifically inquired as to whether Sprague had been
forced, threatened, or coerced to enter a plea of guilty to either Count One or Count Three. Sprague
answered in the negative. Sprague also represented to tﬁe Court that he had read and understood the
plea agreement. Further, Sprague advised the Court that he fully understood and fully appreciated
the consequences of the plea agreement.

Moreover, the Court advised 'Sp_rague that he had the absolu.te right to plead not guilty and
to persist in his plea of not guilty, Sprague represented that he understood this right. F urther, the
Court informed Sprague that if he were to plead guilty to Counts One and Three, he would waive all

defenses and all rights to challenge the validity of those charges, and he would waive any claim that

- he s not guilty as to those charges. Sprague represented that he understood such waivers.

The Court proceeded to fully explain the charges against Sprague, and the Court specifically
asked Sprague to state, under oath, the facts supporting such charges. Sprague admitted that he
engaged in the activities giving rise to Counts One and Three, and, through a series of questions by
the Court, the Court became satisfied that Sprague admitted the essential elements of the crimes
charged against him and that a factual basis to support the guilty pleas existed.

The Court accepted Sprague’s pleas of guilty only after fully satisfying itself that Sprague’s
decision was completely voluntary, that he completely understood the coﬁsequences of such a
decision, and that he understood the rights he waived in making such a decision to plead guilty. The
Court specifically found that the pleas of guilty were made freely and voluntarily, and that a factual

basis supported the pleas. The Court further found that each plea of guilty was not made from




- ignorance, fear, or coercion, and that such pleas were made with a full understanding of the

ﬁcéombanying conseqﬁenees.

Thus, Sprague’s argument that his pleas were coerced, involuntary, and made without full
knowledge of the consequences is clearly refuted by the record.. The Court provided Sprague with
ample opportunity to dispute the voluntariness of his pleas, and the Court fully advised Sprague of
the consequences of his pleas, including the rights which Sprague waived. If Sprague wished to
dispute the voluntariness of the pleas or seek clarification as to the consequences of the pleas, he
should have done so when given the opportunity at the hearing. Rather, Sprague represented that
he understood everything that the Court said to him dufi’ng the hearing, and that no coercion or
pressure was placed upon him to enter his pleas. Pleading guilty “narrows the ‘avenue of escape’ for

a defendant in that he has no right to withdraw that plea once it is knowingly and voluntarily entered.”

. U.S.v. Gines, 964 F.2d 972, 980 (10th Cir.1992), cert, denied, 506 U.8. 1068 (1893). The Court

became satisfied during the change of plea hearing that Sprague knowingly and voluntarily desired
to enter pleas of guilty to Counts One and Three. The record in this case also provides a factual basis
for the pleas ﬁnd indicates that Sprague understood his constitutional rights and affirmatively waived
them. The record additionally demonstrates that Sprague fully understood the consequences of
pleading guilty, including the potential pun'ishmeﬁt he could receive. Hence, Sprague’s present
argument is not well—takf:n, and the Court declines Sprague’s request to withdraw the pleas.
Sprague claims that his counsel and the government somehow conspired to force him to plead
guiity. However, Sprague cites no evidenc¢ supporting his claim. The government and Sprague’s
counsel have represented to the Court that no conspiracy or other agreement existed between

prosecution and defense counsel in order to trick Sprague into pleading guilty, and Sprague was not




e 2 B it v e

advised that he would be put to death._if hﬁe _r;:_fu_sed to plead guilty. The government represents ‘.E!‘.l.«'__it,.

| based onthe factsof thlscase, thedeathpenalty couldnothave beén 501.1- ghf in any evlgnt. Further,

“as noted above, the record is devoid of aﬁy suggestion that Sprague was coerped to plead guilty. On

the contraiy, the record élearly refeals that Sprague’s décisién to plead guilty was entirely voluntary
and free of coercion.

Sprague argues that his couﬁse[ was ineffective in failing to appeal his éonViction and
sentence. However, Sprague does not specifically cite any ground upon which an appeal could have
béen based, Moreover, S.prague makes no showing that any appeai would have been successful. As
noted above, the pleas of guilty were supported by a factual basis and were knowingiy and voluntarily
entered. Further, the Court engaged in extensive change of plea procedures to ensure that Sprague’s
rights were fully and fairly protected. This Court is therefore of the opinion that any appeal attacking

v theconvmuonwould havebeenfutlleSprague does not attack his sentence in his present motion,
| .. and he.lc.enainlly éiteé 1;10 appealable error with respect to his sentence. The Court has undertaken a
thorough review of the sentence, and the Court finds that any appeal related to his sentence would
have found no success in the Circuit. The Court additionally notes that Sprague expressly waived
his right to appeal the conviction and sentence in the plea agreement which Sprague personally signed
and which Sprague represented to the Court that he fully read and understood. During the sentencing
hearing, the waiver of appeal was speciﬁcaﬂy brought to the Court’s attention, and the Court advised
Sprague that any rights of appeal would have to be consistent with the waiver. Thus, the Court finds
that Sprague failed to show that his counsel was ineﬁ"ecﬁive fqr not filing an appeal in the instant case.
Sprague has requested the record and transcripts in order to cite “pertinent parts of the record

that support a claim of withdrawing a plea of guilt.” However, Sprague does not specifically point

ST A s L et el P D g g
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to anythmg w}uch may be contmned in the record that could po ss1bly support Sprague’s content1ons

Rather it appears that Sprague would s1mp1y kae to peruse the record with the hope of fmdmg
something that may be usefirl in support of his motion. Such is insufficient to justify a request for the
record or transcripts. Further, the Court has fully and carefully reviewed every part of the record and
has read the entire transeripts in this case, and the Court finds nothing therein that supports Sprague’s
peﬁtion. Thus, the Court rejects Sprague’s request for the record.

Accordingly, Sprague’s motions pursuant to § 2255 and for production of récord are hereby
DENIED.

IT IS SO ORDERED this & day of July, 1997

H. Dale Cook
- U.S. District Judge
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT . e
" Northern District of Oklahoma /FNTERE® ON DOCKET

DATE.L-l -2

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v. Case Number 96-CR-169-001-BU
EDWIN MERCER a/k/a TUBBY - | FILED
Defendant. | |

 JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE Phil Lombardl, Clork
(For Qffenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987)  U.5. DISTRICT COURT
) . . TTTHERN DISTRICT OF OK1 80 MA

The defendant, EDWIN MERCER a/k/a TUBBY, was represented by James Beckert.

The defendant pleaded guilty January 21, 1997, to Counts 1, 2, and 3 of the Information.
Accordingly, the defendant is adjudged guilty of such count{s}), involving the following offense(s):

Data Offense Count
Titie & Sectian Nature of Offense . Cancluded Number(s]
18 USC 371 Conspiracy 9/14/95 1
18 USC 1955 & 2 lllegal Gambling & ' _ 9/14/95 2
£ © Aiding & Abetting
18 USC 1611 Obstruction of Justice - 9/14/95 3

As pronounced on July 1, 1997, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 4 of this
Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984,

it is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 150, for
count{s) 1, 2, and 3 of the Information, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

T
Signed this the /& day of %,, g,; . , 1997,

_ Unifed Stotas Ditrict Court ) &
gefendant’s SSN: 490-48-4715 _ Nerthom District of Ckichome )
" _efendant’s Date of Birth: 4/28/43 I herahy certify thot the foregoing
D , . o o is o'true copy of the original on fi?e
efendant’s residence and mailing address: RR 3, Box 896, Afton OK 743315 piconr Bil ot Clek
S Phil Lombordi, Cler

B M w30 s
d Deputy
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£ yefendant: EDWIN MERCER a/k/a TUBBY |

Judgment--Page 2 of 4

‘Case Number: 96-CR-169-001-BU

PROBATION
The defendant is hereby placed on probation for a term of five (5) year(s).

While on probation, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime; shall not

iilegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted
by this court {set forth be[ow}; and shall compty with the foIIowihg additional conditions:

1.

crime.

1
2)

3
4}
5]

4)]
7}

8
9}

10)
(R
12}

o~

.1'3}

14)

if this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs or restitution obhgat:on, it shall be a
condition of probation that the defendant pay any such fine, assessment, costs and restitution.

The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm or destructive device.

The defendant shall be placed on home detention to include electronic monitoring at the discretion
of the U. S. Probation Office for a period of six (6) months, to commence within 72 hours of
sentencing date. During this time, the defendant shall remain at place of residence except for
employment and other activities approved in advance by the probation office. The defendant shall
maintain a telephone at place of residence without any special services, modems, answering
machines, or cordless telephones for the above period. The defendant shall wear an electronic device
and shall observe the rules specified by the Probation Office. The entire cost of this program shall
be paid by the defendant. o

The defendant shaii perform 10Q hours of cbmmunity service, as directed by the Probation Office.
STANDARD CONDITIONS OF PROBATION

While the defendant is on probation pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shali not commit another faderal, state or local
In addition:

The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer.

The defandant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of each month. '

The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the prcbatlon officer and faIIow the instructions of the prohation officer.
The defendant shall supporf his or her dependents and masat other family responsibilities.

The defandant shall work regularly at a lawful occupation unless excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, ar other
acceptable reasons.

The defandant shall notify the probation officer within sevanty -two hours of any change in ressdanc:e or emplcymant

The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute or administer any
narcotic or other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.
The defendant shall not frequent places where controliad substances are illegally soid, used, distributed, or administered.

Tha defendant shall not associate with any parsons engaged in criminal activity, and shall nat associate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation officer.

The defendant shall permit a probation officer ta visit him or her st any tima at home or elsewhere and shatl permlt confiscation

" of any contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer,

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within savanty-fwo hours of being arrestad or questioned by a law enforcement
officar.
The defendant shall not enter inte any agreement to act as an informer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without

‘the permission of the court.

As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasloned by the defendant’s
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such natifications and to
confirm the defendant’s ecompliance with such notification requirement. ' '

The defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U. S. Probaticn Office.
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_ -Judgment--Page 3 of 4
¢ efendant: EDWIN MERCER a/k/a TUBBY
Caze Number: 96-CR-169-001-BU
FINE

The defendant shall pay a fine of $ 5,000, as to Count 1. This fine shall be paid in full immediately,
Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid during the period Probation.

If the fine is not paid, the court may sentence the defendant to any sentence which rﬁight have been |
ariginally imposed. See 18 U.S.C. § 3614. '
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Judgment--Page 4 of 4
£ Tefendant: EDWIN MERCER a/k/a TUBBY
Case Number: 96-CR-169-001-BU

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offenss Levei: 13

Criminal Histaory Category: |

Imprisonment Range: 12 months to 18 months
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years '

Fine Range: $ 3,000 to $ 30,000
Restitution: $n/a

The sentence departs from the guideline r'ange for the following reason(s}: upon motion of the
government, as a result of defendant’s substantial assistance.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT JUL:“ 007 S

o " Northern District of Oklahoma
Phi Lorgﬂbaédi Cl%rlé?
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA - S . l'.j‘u'psfﬂ!?“l%ETmfroF PRTANOMA

v. o Case Number 96-CR-173-001-BLL~"

ENTERED ON DOCKET
DATE_Z-01-27

ROBERT EARL CUTHBERTSON
Defendant.

JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987)
The defendant, ROBERT EARL CUTHBERTSON, was represented by Stanley 0. Monroe.
On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Counts 1, 2, 4, & 5 of the Indictment,

The defendant pleaded guilty March 18, 19897, to Count 3 of the Indictment. Accordingly, the
defendant is adjudged guultv of such count(s), involving the following offense(s):

Dats Offense ~ Count
Title & Section : Nature of Offens ' ~ _Concluded Numbar(s}
™~ 18 USC 2423(b) Travel With Intent to Engage in _ 5/94 3

Sexual Act With A Juvenile
: As pronounced on July 1, 1997, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 6 of this
Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

it is ordered that the defendant shail pay to the United States a speclal assessment of $ 50, for
count{s) 3 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shali notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the /o day of 2“ I , 1997.

United States District Coutt ) 6
Northern District of Oklohoma )

1 hereby certify thet the fore$omg :
is o frue copy of the original on f The Honorable Kol Bur o Crict

inthis OO pyt ) ombrdi, Clerk . United States District Judgé

; Oapuly

Defendant’s SSN: 264-87-0718
¢ Defendant’s Date of Birth: 09/21/64
“Defendant’s residence and mailing address: Gulf Correctional Institute, PO Box 10 Wewahitchka FL 32465

/3,
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Judgment—-Page 20f6

© ~Defendant: ROBERT EARL CUTHBERTSON
... Case Number: 98-CR-173-001-BU
' IMPRISONMENT
The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons to be
-~ imprisoned for a term of 120 months, said sentence to run consecutively to Santa Rosa County District
Court Case 96-392-CFA.

The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal.

RETURN

| have executed this Judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on to

at , with a certified copy of this Judgment.

{-\ S e T T United States Marshal -

By

Deputy Marshal
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~Judgment--Page 3 of &
Defendant: ROBERT EARL CUTHBERTSON '

_Case Number: 96-CR-173-001-BU
SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be on supervised release for a term of three (3)
years.

While on supervised releass, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime;
shall not illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been
adopted by this court (set forth below); and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

1. The defendant shall report in parsen to the probation offnca in thf:l district ro Whlch the defendarlt is released within 72 hours
of raleagse from the custody of the Bureau of Prisons,
2. If this judgment imposes a fine, special assessment, costs, or rastitution obligation, it shall bs a ¢ondition of supervised ralsasa

_that the defendant pay any such fine, assessmants, sosts, and restitution that remain unpaid at the commencement of the
tarm of supervised release. _ _ _ o

3. The defendant shall not own or possess a firearm or destructive device. _

4. The defendant shall submit to a search canducted by a United States Probation Officer of his person, residence, vehicle, office
and/or business at a reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, based upon reescnable suspicion of contraband or avidanca
of a viclation of a condition of release. Failura to submit to a search may be grounds for ravocation. Tha defandant shall not
resida at any location without having first advised other residants that the premises may ha subject to searches pursuant to

- this condition.  Additionally, the ‘defendant ‘shall obtain written verification’ from other residents that said residents
acknowlodge the existence of this condltwn and that their failure to cooperata could result in revocation. This
acknowlsdgement shall be provided to the U. S. Probation Offica immediatsly upon taking residency.

b, The defendant shall participate in a program of mental health treatment {to include inpatiant}, as directed by the Probation
o~ Officer. until such time as the defendant is raleasad from the program by the Probation Officer.
B, The defendant is prohibited from involvemeant in youth groups, clubs, orgamzatlons, or actw:tles inyolving children. The

defendant shall have no intaraction with minor children without adult supervision, -
STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

While the defendant is on supervised release pursuant to this judgment, the defandant shall not commit another faderal, state,
or local erime. In addition:

1) The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the parmission of the court or probation officer.

2) The defendant shail report to the probation officer as directed by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
completa writtan report within the first five days of each month. '

3) The defendant shall answar truthfully all inquiries by tha probation officer and follow the lnstructmns of the probation officar.

4)  The defendant shalf support his or her dapandents and meet other family responsibilities.

8) The defendant shall work regularly st a lawful occupation unlase excused by the probation officer far schoolmg trammg, or other
acceptable reasans.

6] The defandant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-twe hours of any change in residanca or amployment

71 The defendant shall refrain from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchass, possess, use, distribute or administer any

. narcotic ar other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.

8] The defendant shall not frequent places where contrallad substances are illegally sold, used, distributed. or administered.

9) Tha dafendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted parmission to do s by tha probation officer.

10} The defandant shall permit @ probation officer to visit him or her at any tima at home or elsewhere and shali permit confiscation
of any contraband observad in plain view by the probation officer,

11} The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hotrs of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officar.

12) The dafendant shalt nat enter into any agresment to act as an informer or a special agent of a law anforcement agency without
tha permission of the court.

£13)  As directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third parties of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
. criminal racord or parsonal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such notifications and to

confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requiremsnt.

14) Tha defendant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by the U. 5. Probation Office.
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Judgment--Page 4 of 6
¢~ Defendant: ROBERT EARL CUTHBEH_TSQN

".. Case Number: 96-CR-173-001-BU
FINE
The Court has determined that the defé'nda'nt does not have the ability to pay interest, and it is
accordingly ordered that the mterest requurement is waived.
The defendant shall pay a fine of $ 1,000, as to Count 3. This fine shall be paid in full’ mmeduate!y
Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid while in custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate

Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from custody, any unpaid balance shall be pald during the
term of supervised rejease.

If the fine is not paid, the court may sentence the defendant to any sentence which mlght have been
originally imposed. See 18 U.S.C. § 3614.

~
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_ _ o . Judgment--Page 5 of 6
,.-\Defendant ROBERT EARL CUTHBERTSON _ _ _
. Case Number: 96-CR-173-001-BU

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE
 RESTITUTION

The defendant shall make restitution in the total amount of $1,780, as to Count 3.

The defendant shall make restitution to the folldwing persons in the following amounts:

Name of Payee Amount of Restitution

Laura Hurst
2629 E. 8th Street
Tulsa 0K 74110

1,780

. Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s).

Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid lmmedlat“e!y shall be paid while
,_f‘"m custody through the Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. Upon release from
‘custody, any unpaid balance shall be paid as a condition of supervised release.

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here.
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: S Judgment--Page 6 of 6
Defendant: ROBERT EARL CUTHBERTSON ' '
“Case Number: 96-CR-173-001-BU

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report. _

Guideiine Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: 30

Criminal History Category: 1l

Imprisonmant Range: 108 months to 120 months
‘Supervised Release Range: ~21to 3 years

Fine Range: ' $ 15,000 to $ 150,000
Restitution: $1,780

~ The fine is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

-The sentence is within the guideline range, that range does not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.

A
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~_ INTHE UNITED STATES DISTRICTCOURT ~~ jy -9 199
- FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

i

Phii Lombardi, Clerk

D

U.S. DISTRICT COURTY

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
)
Plaintiff, ) ;
) | /
vs. ) N& 91-CR-50-C
| ) e
JOHNNY E. GLOVER, )
| ) e op BECHET
Defendant. ) T . . rmm
. J‘UL Lol b
: r-M
ORDER

Currently pending before the Court is the motion filed by defendant, Johnny Glover, seeking .'

to vacate, set aside, or correct his sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255,

On May 9, 1991, a five Count indictment was filed against Glover and other co-defendants.

On September 18, 1991, Glover pled guilty to Count One, organizing and managing a.continuing

criminal enterprise, devoted to the manﬁfacture, possession, and distribution of methamphetamine,

and using a telephone in furtherance of a controlled substance felony, in violation of 21 U.8.C.
§§ 848(a)(c)(d), 846, 841(a)(1), 843(b), and 845(b) now 861. Glover also pled guilty to Count
Three, conspiracy to launder ﬁloney, iﬁ violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 and 1956(a)(1). On December
10, 1991, Glover was sentenced to 150 months on Coum Qne, and sixty months on Count Three, to

run concurrently. Glover did not appeal his conviction or sentence.

Prior to addressing the merits of Glover’s motion, the Court notes that § 2255, as amended

in April of 1996, provides for a one-year limitations period in which to file a § 2255 motion after the

date on which the judgment of conviction becomes final. However, the Tenth Circuit recently

mandated a one-year grace period in which to allow the _ﬁ_ling of § 2255 motions, holding that




“prisoners whose convictions became final on or before April 24, 1996 must file their § 2255 motions

before April 24, 1997 U.S. v. Simmonds, 111 F.3d 737, 746 (10th Cir.1997). It is clear from the

record that Glover’s present motion was submitted on May 25, 1997, and filed on May 29, 1997,
more than one month after the grace period expired. 1t is also apparent from the record that Glover’s
conviction became final prior to April 24, 1996. A judgment of conviction is final when the judgmenfl
of conviction is rendered, the availability of appeal exhausted, and the time for petition for certiorari
has expired. Allen v. Hardy, 106 S.Cf_;.. 2878 (1986). Glover was sentenced in December of 1991,
and he did not appeal his sentence. His conviction thus became final ;vell over five years pri5r to the
filing of his present motion. As such, Glover’s present motion is time-barred under § 2255.
Accordingly, Glover’s motion pursuant to § 2255 is hereby DENIED.

IT IS SO ORDERED this Z day of July, 1997.

H. Dale Cook
U.S. District Judge




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FILED
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA
' - o JUL -91997

Phil Lombardi, Clerk

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) O SURT
)
Plaintiff, )
)
V8. ) Case No. 91-CR-~137-E
) 97-C-480-E
PHILLIP SHERRILL OSBORN, )
)
‘Defendant. )
ORDER

Néw before.the Court is the Motion Pursuant to 28 U.8.C. §2255 to Vacate, Set Aside, or
Correct Sentence by a Person in Féderal Custody (docket #31), of the Defendant Phiilip Sherriil
Osborn.

Osborn pled guiity to one count of Possession of a Firearm During Commission of a Crime
(Count 1) and was sentenced to 60 months incarceration and was found guilty of one count of
Possession of an Unregistered Firearm (COuht 2) and sentenced to 21. months of incarceration.. The
senténces were to run consecutively. Osborn filed this Motion to Vacate asserting that the factual
basis for his plea of gﬁilty is insufficient under Bailey v. U.S., 116 §.Ct. 501 (1995). In its response,
the government concedes defendarit’s motion, agreetng that the conviction as to Count 1 is
inappropriate under the facts of this case pursuant to Bailey,. For Good Cause Shown, the Court
therefore finds that defendant’s motion (docket #31) should be granted as to the sentence imposed
for Count 1.

IT 1S SO ORDERED THIS _ ‘7~ DAY OF JULY, 1997.




S O. ELLISON, SENIOR JUDGE
TED STATES DISTRICT COURT
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~ UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
I - Northern District of Qklahoma JUL 9 1997
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA i L°smb%'d'cgdg¢<
v. o Case Number 96-CR-126-001-B

~ TARYN MARISA OZANUS

: NTE
Defendant. ENTERED ON DOCKET-

pATE_/— 997

AMENDED JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987)
Correction of Sentence for Clerical Mistake (Fed. R. Crim. P. 26)

The defendant, TARYN MARISA OZANUS, was represented by Wayne Sullivan.
On motion of the United States the court has dismissed Counts 2 and 3 of the Indictment.

The defendant pleaded guilty on October 18, 1996 to Count 1 of the Indictment. Accordlngly, the
defendant is adjudged guilty of such count(s}, involving the following offense(s):

Data Offense Count
Title & Section Nature of Offense Concluded Numboar(s)
€78 USC 1029()(2) Conspiracy to Use Counterfeit Access Devices  8/8/96 o

"As pronounced on May 16, 1997, the defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through 4 of
this Judgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

it is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $ 100, for
count{s) 1 of the Indictment, which shall be due immediately.

It is further ordered that the defendant shall notify the United States Attorney for this district within
30 days of any change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special
assessments imposed by this Judgment are fully paid.

Signed this the é — day of /&jff , 1997.

Senior United States D:strlct Judge

. rd Coot )
g~Vefendant’s SSN: 453-39-8755 e o Okchume ) S

Jefendant’ 's Date of Birth: 8f24!75 I ' { heraby corti ﬂlalﬂthefore
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£ efendant: TARYN MARISA OZANUS

Judgment--Page 2 of 4

‘Case Number: 96-CR-125-001-8

PROBATION
The defendant is hereby placed on probation for a term of three {3) years.

While on probation, the defendant shall not commit another federal, state, or local crime; shall not

illegally possess a controlled substance; shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted
by this court (set forth below)}; and shall comply with the following additional conditions:

if this judgment imposes a fine, special assessmant, costs or restitution obligation, it shall be a condition of probation that the
defendant pay any such fina, assessment, costs and restitution.

The defendant shall not own or possass a firearm or destructive davice.

The detendant shall successfully participata in a program of testing and treatment {to include inpatient} for drug and alcohol
abuse, as directed by the Probation Officer, until such tima as raleased from the program by the Probation Officsr.

The defendant shall be placed on home detention to include electronic monitoring at the discretion of the U. S. Probation Office
for a period of four {4} months, to commence within 72 hours of sentencing date. During this time, the defandant shall remain
at placa of residence sxcept for amployment and other activities approved in advance by the probation office. The defendant
shall maintain a telephone at place of residence without any special services, modems. answering machines, or tordless
talaphones for the abeve peried. The defendant shall wear an electronic device and shall obsérva the rules specified by the
Probation Office. The entira cost of this program shall be paid by the dafandant.

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF PROBATION

While the defendant is on probation pursuant to this judgment, the defendant shall net eommit anather federal, state or local

crime. In addition:

1}
2}

3)
4)
.5

&)
7)

8)
8

10)
11)

12}

13

14}

The defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the permission of the court or probation officer,

The defandant shall repart to the prebation officer as dirested by the court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and
complete written report within the first five days of each menth.

Tha defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by tha prohation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.
The defendant shall suppart his or har depandents and meet other family responsibilities, ' '

The dafandant shall wark regularly at a lawful occupation unless excused by the probation officer for schoeling, training, or other
acceptable reasens. ' ' o - ' _

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within seventy-two hours of any change in residence or amployment.

The defendant shalfl refrain from sxcessiva uss of alcohol and shall not purchase, possess, use, distribute ar administer any
narcotic or other controllad substance, ot any paraphernalia related to such substances, except as prescribed by a physician.
Tha defendant shall not frequent places where controlied substances ara illegally sold, used, distributed, or administerad.

The defendant shall not associate with any parsans angaged in criminal activity, and shall not associate with any parson convicted
of a feleny unlass grantad permission to do so by the probation officer,

The defendant shall permit @ probation officer to visit him or her at any time at home or glsewhere and shall permit confiscation
of any contraband observad in plain view by the probation officer,

The defendant shall notify the probation officer within sevanty-two hours of being arrested or guestioned by a law enforcement
officer.

The dafandant shall nat enter into any agreement to act as an informaer or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without
the permission of the court. ' '

As directed by the probation officar, the defendant shall notify third partias of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permit the probation officer to make such natifications and to
confirm the defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement.

The defandant shall submit to urinalysis testing as directed by tha U. S. Prabation Office.
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f“’"\efendant TARYN MARISA OZANUS |

-Case Number: 96-CR-125-001-B

RESTITUTION AND FORFEITURE

RESTITUTION
The defendant shall make restitution in the total émount of $5,780.73.

The defendant shall make restitution to the following persons in the following amounts:

'Name of Payee - I ~ Amoun itution
~AT&T Universal Mastercard | _ | |  $4,207.27

8787 Baypine Road
Jacksonville, Florida 32256
"ATTN: Tammy Youngblood

Woallgreen Drug Store No. 1628 $45.53
4971 South Memorial Drive
Tulsa OK

f-ATTN Brett Burgett

Target Stores No 63 ' ' o - T o '$1'77"'.70
7178 South Memorial Drive
Tulsa OK 74134

Walmart Stores, Inc. No. 992 $475.10
2019 E. 81st Street '

Tulsa OK

ATTN: Russell Parker

Mervyn’s California Dept. Store No, 162 $8756.13
22301 Foothill Bivd
Hayward, California
-ATTN: Jeff Korate

Payments of restitution are to be made to the Clerk of the Court for the Northern District of Oklahoma
for transfer to the payee(s).
Restitution shall be paid in full immediately. Any amount not paid immediately shall be paid during

the period of probation, except that no further payments shall be required after the sum of amounts actuaily
paid by defendants Taryn Ozanus and Kristy Fields has fully covered the compensable injury.

~

Any payment shall be divided proportionately among the payees named unless otherwise specified here.
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{" efendant: TARYN MARISA OZANUS
“Case Number: 96-CR-125-001-B

STATEMENT OF REASONS

The court adopts the factual findings and guideline application in the presentence report.

Guideline Range Determined by the Court:

Total Offense Level: a8

Criminal History Category: 1

Imprisonment Range: 0 months to 6 months
Supervised Release Range: 2 to 3 years

Fine Range: $ 1,000 to $ 10,000
Restitution: $5,780.73

The fing is waived or is below the guideline range because of the defendant’s inability to pay.

The sentence is within the guideline range, that range doss not exceed 24 months, and the court
finds no reason to depart from the sentence called for by application of the guidelines.




FILED,

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT JuL -1 1897
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA
Phil Lombardi, S
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA )
Plaintiff ) /
VS ) Case Number 93-CR-094-001-E
)
CLESTER BILLS )
Defendant ) EUTENED ON DOCKET
)

ORDER REVOKING SUPERVISED RELEASE

Now on this 18th day of June 1997, this cause comes on for sentencing concerning allegations that
the defendant violated conditions of supervised release as set out in the Petition on Supervised
Release filed on March 03, 1997. The defendant is present in person and represented by counsel,
Charles Whitman. The Government is represented by Assistant U.S. Attorney Neal Kirkpatrick, and

the United States Probation Office is represented by J. Mark Ogle.

The defendant was heretofore convicted on his plea of not guilty to Counts One and Two of a two-
count Indictment charging him with Possession Of A Firearm After Former Conviction Of A Felony
and Recetving And Possessing An Unregistered Firearm in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(1) and
26 U.S.C. §§ 5841, 5861(d) and 5871, respectively. On January 7, 1994, Bills was committed to the
custody of the U.S. Bureau of Prisons to be imprisoned for a term of 41 months on each count to be
followed by a 3 year term of supervised release on each count to run concurrently. In addition to the
standard conditions of release, Bills was ordered to participate in substance abuse counseling, mental

heaith treatment and submit to the special search condition.




On April 15, 1997, a revocation hearing was held regarding the allegation noted in the Petition on
Supervised Release, filed on March 03, 1997, said allegation being that on June 13, 1996, and June
25, 1996, Bills submitted urine specimens that tested positive for Cannabinoid 50 THC Metabolite.
On June 20, 1996, he submitted a urine specimen that tested positive for Cannabinoid 50 THC
Metabolite and Cocaine Metabolite Benzoylecgonine. As a result he was required to participate in
individual substance abuse counseling at CBTI in addition to the mental health counseling that he was
receiving at Star Mental Health Center. On October 21, 1996, and October 30, 1996, Bills submitted
urine specimens that tested positive for Cocaine Metabolite Benzoylecgonine and as a result he was

placed in the Metropolitan Tulsa Substance Abuse Detoxification program.

On November 5, 1996, Bills was transferred to the 12 & 12 in-patient substance abuse program
where he remained until completing that program on December 27, 1996. On January 30, 1997, Bills
submitted a urine specimen that tested positive for Cocaine Metabolite Benzoylocgonine. The
defendant stipulated to the allegation as alleged in the Petition. Sentencing was set for May 15, 1997.

On May 15, 1997, the Sentencing Hearing was continued until June 18, 1997,

On June 18, 1997, as a result of the sentencing hearing, the Court found that the violation occurred
after November 1, 1987, and that Chapter 7 of the U. S. Sentencing Guidelines is applicable. Further,
the Court found that the violation of supervised release constitutes a Grade C violation in accordance
with U.8.S.G. § 7B1.1(a)(3), and the defendant’s criminal history category of 111 is applicable for
determining the imprisonment range. In addition, the Court found that a Grade C violation and a
criminal history category of I1I establish a revocation imprisonment range of five (5) to eleven (11)

months in accordance with U.S.$.G. § 7B1.4(a). In consideration of these findings and pursuant to




_er—

US. vs. Lee, 757 2d 770 (10th Cir. 1992), in which the circuit determined that the policy statements
in Chapter 7 were not mandatory, but must be considered by the Court, the following sentence is

ordered:

It is the judgment of the Court that the defendant, Clester Bills, is hereby committed to the custody
of the U.S. Bureau of Prisons to be imprisoned for a term of five months. It is further ordered that
the original fine order of $100, with a current balance of $55, will remain in effect. The Court

recommends that the defendant be placed at the Federal Correctional Center at El Reno.

orable James O. Ellison,
United States District Judge




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FIL E D

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA
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Phil Lombardi, Clerk

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) U.8. DISTRICT COURT
Plaintiff, g
vs. | ; No,~ 92- CR—133-C '/
LOUISE. SANTURIO ;
Defendant ; 0O 50{_‘,»(;1
_ JUL o5 el
ORDER e

Currently pending before the Court is the motion filed by defendant, Louis Santurio, seeking
to vacate, set aside, or correct his sentence, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255,

On November 6, 1992,' Santurio was named a One-Count Indictment for a violation of federal

controlled substance laws. On March 9, 1993, Santurio was found guilty of possessidh with intent

to distribute cocaine, in violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1) and (b)}(1)(A)(1i). On May 18, 1993,
Santurio was sentenced to 120 months imprisonment and ordered to pay a $3,000 fine. Santurio’s

conviction and sentence were aflirmed on appeal. 11.S. v Santurio, 29 F.3d. 550 (10th Cir.1994).

On April 18, 1997, Santurio’s present § 2255 motion was filed. Santurio moves this Court

to vacate, set aside, or correct the sentence imposed upon him on several grounds of ineffective
assistance of .counsel.

Prior to addressing the merits of Sanmrio’s motion, the Cﬁurt hotes that § 2255, .as amended
in April of 1996, pfovides for a o_ne-yéar limitations period in which to file a § 2255 motion. The

Court further notes that if the Court were to apply the limitations period to Santurio, his motion

- would be time-barred. However, the Tenth Circuit has recently mandated a one-year grace period




in which to allow the filing of § 2255 motions, holding that “prisoners whose convictions became final

on or before Aprit 24, 1996 must file their § 2255 motions before April 24, 1997.” US v

Simmonds, 111 F.3d 737 (Idth Cir.1997). Since Santurio’s present motion was submitted prior to
April 24, the motion is not time-barred under § 2255, as amended.

T.ypically, “§ 2255 is not available to test the legality of matters which should have been raised
on appeal.” 1.8, v. Walling, 982 F.2d 447, 448 (10th Cir.1992). A failure to raise an issue on direct
appeal acts as a bar to raising the issue in a § 2255 motion, unless Santurio can show cause and actual
prejudice, or can show that a fundamental miscarriage of justice will result if his claim is not
addressed. XS, v. Allen, 16 F.3d 377, 378 (10th Cir.1994). This procedural bar applies to coltateral
attacks on a defendant’s sentence, as well as his conviction. I_d__ Since the government raised this

procedural bar in the instant case, this Court must enforce it and hold Santurio’s claims barred unless

- cause and prejudice or a miscarriage of justice is shown. Id,

In order to evade this procedural bar, Santurio relies upon the well-established exceptioﬁ (and
now the universal claim) of ineffective aésistance of counsel. “A defendant may establish cause for
procedural default by showing he received ineffective assistance of counsel.” 1S v. Cox, 83 F.3d
336 (10th Cir.1996). To succeed on a claim of ineﬁ‘ectivé assistance of couﬁsel, Santurio must satisfy

the rigid standard contained in Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984), The Supreme Court

in Strickland held that a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel has two components. First,
Santurio must show that his attorney “made errors so serious that counsel was not functioning as the
‘counsel’ guaranteed . . . by the Sixth Amendment.” Id. at 687. “Thé proper standard for attorney
performance is that of reasonably effective assistance.” Id. Therefore, to succeed, Santurio must

show that his counsel’s performance fell below an objective standard of reasonableness. Furthermore,
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Santurio must show that the deﬁment performance prejudlced thc defense ? I_¢ However, “a court

must mdulge a strong presumptlon that counscl’s conduct falls w1thm the w1de range of reasonable

professional assistance . . ..” ]d. at 689,

Santurio first asserts that his counsel was ineffective in failing to conduct investigations prior
to trial. Santurio contends that counsel failed to request a coort-appointed investigator, failed to hire
an investigator, and failed to conduct interviews with any officer or agent involved in this case.
However, Santurio’s first ground of error essentially attacks the validity of the search conducted of
the vehicle which Santurio was driving on the day of his arrest. This issue has already been decided
both by this Court and the Circuit. In an evidentiary hearing held prior to tnal, this Court denied
Santurio’s motion to suppress based on unlawful search. Given the fact that the government

presented a consent form signed by Santurio to search his vehicle, and based upon other evidence and

testimony elicited at the hearing, this Court concluded that the search of Santurio’s vehicle was

proper. On appeal, the Circuit revjewed this Court’s findings and affirmed this Court’s
determinations. The Circuit held that “it is clear that defendant consented to the search of his vehicle
and that [the officer’s] search did not exce_ed the scope of that consent.” Santurjo, 29 F.3d at 553,
Hence, any issue as to the validity of the search is largely foreclosed. .Santurio merely a.ttem.pts to
relitigate the same issue bf .couching it in terms of ineffective assistance. The allegations which
Santurio now raise regarding circumstances surrounding the officer’s search of the vehicle and
counsel’s alleged failure to properly attack certain grounds upon which the search was based do not
alter the fact that this Court and the Circuit have already determined the search to be consensual,
voluntary and valid. Even if Santurio is correct in arguing that the search was improperly based on

a few legally insufficient factors, such as improper reliance on the officer smelling & chemical odor




or the faiture of the drug dog to alert, thé fact remains that Sanmriq yoluntaﬁly consented to the
se:.a.rc.h. It is unc.Ii..s.iJutéd.t.h;% avoluntary éblnsen.f tosearch 1sa vaiid ..e.:<\ce.p';ion to..t..i.le.{var.rlaﬁt..
requirement. Furthermore, the fact that the stop may have been prete:;tual 1s wrelevant. IS v,
Botero-Qspina, 71 F.3d 783 (10th Cir.1995) (en banc), gert. denied, 116 S.Ct. 2529 (1996). As the
Circuit noted in the present case, the officer stopped Santurio only after he was observed speeding
in & construction zone. Given that the officer had a justifiable and lawful reason to initiate the stop,
any pretext is immaterial. Additionally, the Court heard the officer testify at the suppression hearing
that he intended to detain Santurio and use any means within the confines of the law to search the
vehicle. Eveﬁ considcring the officer’s adamant desire to search the vehicle, the Court found
Santurio’s consent to be voluntary and valid, and the Circuit agreed.

In a final attempt to establish some relevant nexus between the lawfulness of the search and
. counsels alloged ineffective representation, Santurio alludes to counsel’s failure to attack the validity
of the consent by suggesting that no medical experts were consulted regarding Santurio’s ability to
think clearly without his insulin. However, aside from a mere conclusory allegation, Santurio offers
absclutely no evidence that his ability to consent was in fact diminished by lack of insulin, Further,
there is no indication that had his counse] presénted this argument to the Court durin g.the evidentiary
hearing that the result would have been different. Apparently recognizing the futility of this
argument, Santurio does not even expﬁcitly relate his in_sulin or presumed lack thereof with the
precise issue of consent. Merely stating that counsel failed to conduct an investigation, without a
showing of prejudice, is insufficient to establish ineffective assistance. Hence, the Court finds no
error respecting the search of Santurio’s vehicle,

Santurio argues that he was denied effective assistance when counsel failed to call witnesses




or put on ewdence at tna.l Santuno argues that counsel was meffectlve in f‘allmg to call Serrano

Santuno $ co—defendant whose motion for judgment of acqmttal was granted by the Court followmg

the close of the government’s evidence. Santurio contends that Serrano could have provided
beneficial testimony, and could have been called as a defense witness once the Couﬁ granted
Serrano’s motion for judgment of. acquittal. Santurio claims that it was error to not call a witness
when that witnens would present the only defense available. This may be so, but, again, Santurio
relies on mere conclusions and fails to present specific, supporting facts. Santurio implies that
Serrano could have presented the only defense available. Yet, Santurio utterly fails to detail precisely
what defense Serrano would have provided if called as a witness during the trial, aside from assertions
related to the search of the vehicle.

Santurio suggests that Serrano would have testified to incidents surrounding the search of the
. vehicle that would have rebutted the testimony of the arresting officer concerning the voluntariness
of the search. Santurio suggests that Serrano would have testified that the officer forced Santurio
to sign the consent to search form. Santurio argues that this would have corrobq;“ated his testimony
that the officer had threatened him to sign the form.

However, Santurio fails to recognize that Serrano’s rnotion for judgment of acquittal was
granted well after the Court made its ruling regarding the legahty of the search; as noted the
Judgment of acquittal was granted followmg the close of the government 5 .case durmg trlal Smce
the legality of the search was not at issue during trial, Santurio’s opportunity to call Serrano as a
witness f'o[]owmg her Judgment of acquittal would have had no bearing on the legallty of the search.
Since Santurlo merely suggests that.Serrano. s tnal testlfnony would have been directed fo the

previously resolved issue of the validity of the search, and because Santurio offers no indication that




Serrano would have provided any other information refating to his defense, the Court does not

understand héw counsel’s fﬁilure to call S.er.rano during trial once such an opp ortunity was ax;'ailable
could have prejudiced the defense. Thelfe is simply no indication that Serrano would have provided
any beneficial evidence during trial that could have resulted in a diﬁ'erent verdict. Moreover, no one
prevented Serrano from offering testimoﬁy at the suppression hearing if she had so desired; indeed,
her codefendant, Santurio, did take the st.and in an attempt to refute the voluntariness of the search.
Further, based on the evidence and testimony presented at the suppression hearing, the Court became
satisfied that the search was consensual and vbluntary.. The Cﬁurt found the officer’s testimony
regarding the search credible, and thefe is no indication at this time that the Court Wouid have found
otherwise had Serrano been called to testify. Because the Court found the search valid based upon

proper consent, Serrano’s proposed testimony and other proposed evidence regarding the odor in the

. vanis largely immaterial. Furthermore, the _Court agrees with the government that Santurio is merely

speculating as to what Serrano’s testimony might have been; there is no indication that Serrano would
have, in fact, testified as Santurio has suggested had she been called.

Again, Santurio attacks counsel’s failure to argue his ability to think clearly and to knowingly

- understand and waive his rights due to a supposed insulin deficiency. Santurio offers no evidence that

lack of insul'i.n preﬂ'ented .him for making an in%onned decision regarding consenf. Moreover, the
Court finds it very odd that Santurio did not bring this seemingly‘_vital issue to the Court’s attention
during__theéuppression heariﬁg when Santurio was testifyin_g as to the voluntariness of his consént.
Add_itioneﬂly, as this issue. was resolved p_rior to trial, counsel’s failure to. present .ﬂ.'li.S defense to the

jury during trial was not error. Santurio may be correct that a compiete failure to prepare a defense

may constitute deficient performance, and comments by defense counsel that she was forced to attend
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the trial and forced to miss a golf game may be inappropriate ;md indicatiye pf_a lack of interest.
However, Santuno completely fails to offeranymdlcatlonof whathts counsel should h.aire.préséﬁted
o argued ét trial with respect o Santurio’s guilt or innocence. Santurio’s assertions primarily
concern the legality of the search of the vehicle and none t;‘nd to shed light on any other lpropo_sed
défense. As noted, the validity of the search was settled prior td trial and {Nas theréfore not at issué
duﬁng trial. Santurio essentially offers no specific witnesses who could have, or should have, been
called to testify in his behalf at trial and whose testimony would have been directed to issues unrelated
to the validity of the search. Furthermore, Santurio offers no evidence impacting issues other than
the validity of the search which could héve, or should have, been pi‘esented to the jury. Indeed,
Santurio impll tes that Serrano would have fﬁreseniéd the only available defense, although Santurio fails
to detail. what that defen.se.w.ould havé béén, Moreover, Séhturid rﬁakeﬁ absbiutely nb shc_)wing of
.fa.cni'al innpcchce_. ‘The Court is therefore _unabh_e :t_o ﬁnd: that 'cogris_el’s a_lleged_ “cumi;!ativé errors”
actually prejudiced the defense. | |
Santurio argues that the Court erred in calculating his base level offense due to counsel’s
| failure to file written objections to the pre'sentence report (“PSR”), The PSR attributes 196. kilograms
of cocaine to Santurio, which corresponds to a base offense level of 38, pursuant to § 2D1.1 of the
Sentencing Guidelines. In arriving at this é_imount, thé PSR cites the 74 kilograms of cocaine that was
recovered from Santurio’s vehicle on the day he was arrested. The PSR further indicates that
Santurio admitted that the 74 l"ci'l'ograr'n's of cocaine was the second part of a 200 kilograﬁn shipnﬁént,
and that he had alréadsf made one cros_.s.-c_ountry trip with 122 kilograms. The PSR combined the
amount seized with the amount which Santurio admitted transporting, to arrive at 196 kilograms,

However, Santurio maintains that the Court accepted a stipulation between the parties at trial




that only 74 kllograms of cocaine were 1nv01ved in the present case Further Santuno argues that

'he should have received the beneﬁt of‘ § IB1.8 of' the Cnudelmes since he and the government agreed

that the information concerning the 122 kilograms would not be used in computing his sentence.
Thus, Santurio argues that he should have been assigned a base offense level of 36, corresponding
to 74 kilograms of cocaine, rather than a base offense level of 38, which corresponds to 196
kilograms.

In reviewing the record, the Court notes that the sttpulation which Santurio cites does not
purport to limit the ameunt of cocaine attributable to Santurio to 74 kilograms. The stipulation
merely states that if a certain government witness were called to testify, he would state that he
received 74 kilograms of a substance from the Oklahoma Highway Patrol, that he conducted a

chemical analysis of the substance, and that it would be his expert opinion that the samples were in

fact cocaine. The Court does not understand how such a stlpulatlon could be’ mterpreted as meaning

* that Santurio can only be held aecountable for 74 kilograms of cocaine. Rather the stipulation merely

goes to the identity of the substance seized from Santurio as being cocaine. The ;tipulation in no way
serves to prohibit the inclusion of the 122 kilograms of cocaine in Santurio’s sentencing calculation
whtch Santurto edmitted_ to traneportieg. |

The Court also disagrees with Santurio that he should have received any benefit from § 1B1.83,
which provides that where a defer‘tdaht agrees to coopetate with the govemmertt by providing
information related to unlawful activities of others, and the government agrees thatse]f‘-inctiminating
information provided pﬁrsuant to the agreement will not be used against the defendant, such
information shall not be used in computing the defendant’s sentence. Santurio maintains that he

provided information related to the prior shipment of 122 kilograms of cocain only after law




enforcement agents advised Santurio that if he cooperated, the U.S. Attorney would be in_fpi'_me_d,'

ﬁho v.voulzd provide assistﬁﬁce to Saz.'ltuﬂrio‘ Tﬁe”govcmment argues that although fhe first part of
§ 1B1.8 was arguably satisfied by Santurio agreeing to cooperate with the government, fhe second
part of that section was not fulfilled since the government never agreed not to use self-incriminating
information against Santurio.

In making his argument, Santurio provides no evidence whatsoever that the government
actually agreed not to use self-incriminating information against him in exchange for such information.
Government agents merely agreed to inform the prosecution tflat Santurio provided information.
From this, Santurio argues that he had a feasonable expectation that an implicit contract was entered
into with the government and that the 122 kilograms would not be used against him in any manner.
This argument is not supported by law. Presented with facts similar to the present case, the Tenth
_Ci_rcu_it in US v E'vgng , 985 F.2d 497(10th Cir. 1__993)? cert, dep_igd, 508 U.S. 965 (1993), held that
§ .1B1.8(a) r.equi.rés the exiétence of two:sepﬁfate agreements before taking effect: 1) the defendant
agrees to provide information regarding the unlawful activities of others, and 2) the government
agrees not to use self-incriminating information provided pursuant to the agreement against the

defendant. As in Evans, although the agreement between Santurio and the government agent may

satisfy the first requirement, it does not satisfy the second. The agent’s “statement was nothing more
than an offer to tell the prosecutor that [Santurio] had cooperated. No reasonable peréon c.ould
construe the statement as a promise not to use self-incriminating information against [Santurio].” Td.
at 499. Thus, since no agreement was actually made between Santurio and the government, § 1B1.8
does not apply.

Santurio also seemingly contends that the government somehow breached a contract with




Santp_t_rio rega_rding the use Qf the information related to the 122 .kilo'grams of cocaine. However, the
Couﬁ has reviewed the recofd and has di;v.covered that no plea agreements exist in this case. Santﬁrio
recognizes that govermment agents are not in the position to offer any plea agreement, but he insists

that the agent’s promise to notify the U.S. Attorney of Santurio’s cooperation somehow has the effect
of binding the government to a supposed implied agreement, As the Court finds that there was no
agreement between the government and Santurio that in_criminating statements would not be used
against him, and since no plea agreémént exists, Sanmn'o.’s argument on this poinf is meritless. Thus,
any objection by counsel to the PSR based either on the stipulation or the application of § 1B1.8
would have been overruled.

Santurio claims that the Court erred in failing to address an objection to the amount of drugs
stat_'ed in the PS_R.. Howe_ver, as no objection was made, tﬁe Court could not have addressed it.
___San_tur_io'__a_lzslq argt;e$ thaj:_ drug q};anti_tie_s in uncif}arge_d counts that appear ih the PSR and with the
judge failing to explain the basis upon which that information was included cannot be added to the
total amount of drugs for the purposes of sentencing. Santurio points to (LS. v. Padilla, 947 F.2d
893 (10th Cir.1991), cert, denied, 508 U.S. 954 (1993), for support. However, Santurto misstétes
Padilla’s holding. The Circuit a.ctual'l}'.f held that the trial court erred in considering an amount of
heroin .contained in an uncharged count when detefmining the amount of aggregate drugs for
sentencing purpases absent any indication in the PSR or record as to the basis for the additional
. amount of drugs. Id. at 896. In the presént case, paragraph 9 of the PSR clearly provides the basis
fo; the additional 122 kilogfams of EOICat;né, and thé .re'n.:.ord in thi's. case does not lack “’éhy'indicaticn

of reliability” as to the 122 kilograms of cocaine. Thus, this argument is meritless.

The government also provides an interesting footnote, calling the Court’s attention to the fact
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that this Court actually departed dowh{vard from a guideline minimum of 168 months to the statutory
minimum of 120 months. The Court found that the statutory minimum of 120 months adequately
addressed Santurio’s involvement in the offense, and also recognized Santurio’s cooperation upon

his arrest. Thus, in essence, the Cour‘é disregarded the effect of the additional 122 kilograms of

cocaine. Indeed, the statutory sentence of 120 months is also fifteen months less than the guideline

range applicable to an offense level of 33, which Santurio now argues should be applied. Hence, the

Court finds no prejudice.

Santurio next argues that counsel was ineffective in failing to request a downward departure

based on role in the offense. Santurio argueé that he simpiy moved the drugs from one place to

another and was paid a small fee for his part in the transfer, Santurio contends that the evidence

shows that he was a mere courier. Santurio thus argues that he “clearly qualifies” for a downward

. departure based on his mitigating role in the offense, pursuant to § 3BIL.2.

The Court, .however, finds no error. Santurio bears the burden .of establishing by a
preponderance of thg evidence that he was é minimal or minor participant. 118, v Caruth 930 F.2d
811, 812 (10th Cir.1991). Given the large amount of cocaine which Santurio was found to have
transported or attempted to transport, the Court does not find that Santurio was a ntinor or minimal
participant. Thus, even if a request for a mitigating role had been made, the Court would have
rejected such a request in this case. Note 2 following § 3B1.2 states that the downward adjustment
for a minimal participant is intended to be used infrequently, and usually only in cases involving a
singlé a..c.:t. of_ carrymg drugs for a small sm_u..l.g.g.iing.operation.. Réther than béihg recruited as a courier
for a single smuggling transaction involving a sméll amount of drugs, Santurio was involved in a

smuggling operation involving a large amount of cocaine, and personally transported at least two
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- shipments totaling 196 kilograms of co'cgi.neA It cannot be seriously argued that such involvement
C.O-I.'ISt;ltut:éS...miI.li.l.';lal parfi'cipati.c.:ﬁ.. .1\/‘Ilore:o.verr.,. the" Circﬁit héﬁ rebégfﬁzéé tﬁe imporfanc;,e of coufier#
to drug conspiracies, and has not reacted favorably. to arguménts raised by couriers seeking a
downward departure based on minimaj or minﬁr participation. See, 1.8, v. Williamson, 53F.3d
1500, 1524 (lbth Cir.1995), cert, denied, :1 16 S.Ct. 218 (1995) (recognizing the important finction
of couriers in drug distribution networks, and acknowledging prior opinions denying requests for
offense level reductions under § 3B1.2 on that basis alone); U.S. v. Ayers, 84 F.3d 382, 384 (10th
Cir.1996) (giveﬁ the important function éf couriers in drug %lis.tribution networks, they often are not
minor participants); and 1S, v, Carter, 971 F.2d 597, 600 (10th Cir.1992), cert. denied, 506 U.S.
1009 (1992) (defendant’s.services.as courier were as indi's.pensa.ble to the completion of the criminal
activity as thdse of the seller and the buyer and to debate v?hich one is less culpable than the others
revealed by the PSI; and the authorities addressing the issue, the Court finds that Santurio was not
a minimal participant, and the Court would therefore have not awarded any downward departure on
that basis. Nonetheless, the Court also noted at sentencing that Santurio was forthcomiﬁg and
coopefative after his arrest, and he had a criminal history score of zero. The Court took these factors
into consideration, and departed downward to the statutory minimum of 120 mbnths. Thus; éiren if
the Court agreed that Santurio was a. mi ﬁor participant and therefore decreased hi s. offensé level 5y
two points, which woﬁid yield a total offense 'Ievél of 33 witha Correqunding raﬁge of 135 to 168
e mp‘nths imprisonment, Santurio’s sentence would still be below the guidel ine.range. 'Hence, the Court
o prerdi_cé._ § _ R . . _ o

Santurio next contends that he was denied effective assistance of counsel when counsel failed




to request 2 dpwnward departu_re _basgd on accep_t_ance_'_of' _r.espol;_lsi_bi_lityl. “The Court is utterly
perple;;éd by this argument, as paragrap.h 20 of the PSR clearly awarcis a three point redu_ction for
acceptance of responsibility. This argument is an exampie of an attémp.t to throw out every
conceivable defense in order t.o _see.what nﬁght stick withc;ut adequately examining. the merit of such
an argument. The Court therefore finds this argument bot.h fﬁvol’ous and highly inappropriate.
Lastly, Santurio argues for app]ication of the “safety valve” contained in 18 U.S.C. § 35 53(fj,
which provides that the statutory minirnuml .se.nter.lq.:e is to bé disi‘egarded in fa.vor.of the guidelines
range in certain cases. Section 5C1.2 is the porrespOnding gUideline pfovision. However, the safety
valve is not applied to sentences imposed prior to September 23, 1994, 1LS. v. Torres, 99 F.3d 360,
362 (10th Cir.1996), cert, denied, 117 S.Ct. 1273 (1 997). Since Santurio was sentenced in May of

1993, he does not qualify for the safety valve. Even if Santurio qualified for § 5C1.2's safety valve,

~ the Court has trouble understanding exactly what benefit Santurio would receive. Santurio was

sentenced to the statutory minimum of 120 months imprisonment, which is far less than the 168 to
210 months provided by the Guidelines. '

The Court finds that Santurio faiiéd to dem.onstrate that he received ineffective assistance of
counsel under the standard pronounced in Strickland. The Court does not agree that the result of the
proceedings would haﬁe been different but fof the alleged errors of counsel. That is, the Court ﬁﬁds
that Santurio failed to show that “there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s [alleged]
unprqfessional eIrors, the result of the proceeding would have been different.” Strickland at 694.

Santurio requests a hearing on the issues raised herein, Section 2255 provides that unless the
motion .an.d recdrds concl'u.siw;ely sho;v tha;t Santurio is enﬁtled to. no relief, the Court shall granta

hearing. In the present case, the Court concludes that the record conclusively shows that Santurio

13




£ isentitled to no relief, and a hearing would be nonproductive. Hence, Santurio’s request for a hearing
is denied,
Accordingly, Santurio’s motion pursuant to § 2255 is hereby DENIED.

IT IS SO ORDERED this, QZ 2 day of June, 1997,

H. Dale Cook
U.S. District Judge
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Currently pending before the Court is the motion filed by defendant, Bobby Richardson,
seeking to vacate, set aside, or correct his sentence, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255.

On January 5, 1994, Richardson was named in an eleven Count Indictment for a violation of

“Various federal controlled substance and firearms faws. On July 28, 1994, a jury found Richardson

guilty on eight Counts. On October 3 1994, Richardson was sentenced to 228. months imprisonment.
Richardson’s conviction and sentence were affirmed on appeal. U.S, v, Richardson, 86 F3d 1537
(10th Cir.1996), cert, denied, 117 S.Ct. 588 (1996).

On April 17, 1997, Richardson’s present § 2255 motion was filed. Richardson moves this
Court to vacate, set aside, or correct the sentence imposed upon hiﬁl on the following grounds: 1) /,,/
.the government failed to prove the type o.f methampﬁetaﬁﬁne at sentencing; 2) the Court erred in its
drug quantity determination; 3) double: jeopardy bars proof of type of methamphetamine; and. 4)

ineffective assistance of counsel.

Typically, “§ 2255 is not available to test the l'egality of matters which should have been raised

‘onappeal.” 118, v. Walling, 982 F.2d 447, 448 (10th Cir.1992). A failure to raise an issue on direct




- .- appeal acts as a bar to raising the issue in a § 2255 motion, unless Richardson can show cause and

actual prejudice, or can show that a fundamental miscarriage of justice will result if his claim is not
addressed. TLS.v_Alle n, 16 F.3d 377, 378 (10th Cir.1994), This procedural bar applies to collatéral
attacks on a defendant’s sentence, as well as his con.viction‘ Id, Since the gﬁvemment raised this
procedural bar in the instant case, this Court must enforce it and hold Richardson’s claims barred
unless cause and prejudice or a miscarriage of justice is shown. Id, |

In order to evade this procedural bar, Richardson relies upon the well-established exception,
and now the universal claim, of ineffective assistance of counsel. “A defendant may establish cause
for procedural default by showing he received ineffective assistance of counsel.” .S, v. Cox, 83
F.3d 336 (10th Cif.1996). To succeed én a claim of ineffective assistance of cbunsel,’ Ridhardsori
must satisfy the rigid standard contained in Strickland v, Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984). The
Supreme Court in Strigklaﬁd' ‘held that a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel has two
components. First, Richardson must show that his attorney “made errors so serious that counsel was
not functioning as the ‘counsel’ guaranteed . . . by the Sixth Amendment.” Id, at 687. “The proper
standard for attorney performance is that of reasonably effective .assistance.” Id. Therefore, to
succeed, Richardson must show that his counsel’s performance fell below an objective standard of
reasonableness. Furthermore, Richardson must show that “the deficient performance prejudiced the
defense.” Id, However, “a court must indulge a strong presumption that counsel’s conduct falls
within the wide range of reasonable préfes'sional'assistanc'e ... 1d. at 689,

Richardson first asserts that his counsel was ineffective in failing to object to the Court’s
application of the offense level for d-methamphetamine rather than l-methamphetamine, when the

government failed to offer proof at sentencing that the substance was, in fact, d-methamphetamine.
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- On appeal, the Circuit addressed the issue regarding type of methamphetamine and held that since

Richardson failed to object to the type of methamphetamine prior to appeal, his argument must fail,

as factual disputes do not rise to the level of plain error. Richardson, 86 F.3d at 1554. However, the

Circuit did not consider Richardson’s present argument in fhe context of ineffective assistance of
counsel. Although the Circuit dismissed this argument without actually considering its merit, the
Circuit noted that, contrary to Richardson’s present assertion, the government did introduce evidence
at sentencing that the methamphetamine found at Richardson’s apartment was d-methamphetamine.
Id. atn.11.

The “government has the burden of proof and production during the sentencing hearing to
establish the amounts and types of contr__c_)lled substances related tq__the offense. Because the type of
methamphetamine is not an element of the crime, it need only bé proved by a preponderance of thé
evidence at sentencing” 1.S. v Deninng, 29 F.3d 572, 580'(-10’[}1 Cir.1994), cert, denied, 115 S.Ct.
1117 (1995). The Court notes that Richardson does not allege that he possessed I-methamphetamine
rather than d-methamphetamine. He simply alleges that his counsel erred in failing to require the
government to carry its burden of proof as to this issue during sentencing. Given the government’s
alleged failure to prove the type of methamphetamine at sentencing, Richardson argues that the rule
of lenity requires that the Court impose punishment in accord with l-methamphetamine rather than
d-methamphetamine,

The record reveals, however, that at sentencing, the government offered into evidence a copy
of & lab report in order to establish that d-methamphetamine was recovered from Richardson. The
Court understood the offer as supporting the government’s claim that d-methamphetamine was

involved in the present case, and the Court accepted it. Furthermore, the government, in response
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- - to Richardson’s present motion, provided the Court with a copy of the lab report relating to the

identification of the methamphetamine involved in the present case. The report clearly reveals that

‘the substance attributable to Richardson was identified as d-methamphetamine.

Thus, even if the Court were to ﬁnd that counsel’s failure to raise the issue regarding fhe type
of methamphetamine involved in the present case fell below the standard of reasonable assistance, the
Court nevertheless finds that Richardson was not thereby prejudiced. The Court finds that the
laboratory report shows, by a preponderance of the evidence, that d-methamphetamine is attributable
to Richardson. Hence, even if an objection: had been made, the result in this case would have been
the sa.mé. Richérdson has therefore failed to demonstrate that "there i.s a reasonable probabilitﬁr that,
but for counsel’s unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different.”
Strickland, 466 U..S. at 694.

' Richardson contends that his sentence should be corrected due to improper use of drug
quantities in calculating his sentence. However, on appeal, the Circuit considered and rejected this
argument, holding that the record “clearly supplies sufficient evidence to support the drug quantity
finding.” Richardson, 86 F.3d at 1553. Thus, this argument is moot.

Richardson lastly asserts that it is a violation of double jeopardy to provide the government
with a second opportunity to present evidence relating to the type of methamphetamine which was
in its custody and at its disposal for testing at the time of sentencing. However, as the Court found
that the government did, in_ fact, offer evidence at sentencing via a lab report relating to the type of
methamphetamine involved herein, and since the Court found that the report established the presence

of d-methamphetamine by a preponderance of the evidence, this argument is moot. Further, the

Court notes that this argument has no basis in law. See, U.S, v. Glover, 97 F.3d 1345 (10th
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Cir.1996) (in § 2255 proceeding, remanding case to district court for determination of type of
methamphetamine following government’s faiture to introduce such proof at initial sentencing).

Richardson requests a hearing on the issues raised herein. Section 2255 provides that unless
the motion and records conclusively show that Richardson is entitled to no relief, the Court shall
grant a hearing. In the present case, fhe Court concludes that the record conclusively shows that
Richardson is entitled to no relief, and a hearing would be nonproductive. Hence, Richardson’s
request for a hearing is denied. |

Accordingly, Richardson’s motion pursuant to § 2255 is hereby DENIED.

IT IS SO ORDERED this Aglay of June, 1997.

| H. Dale Cook
© U.S. District Judge
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

vs. Case No. 96-CR-134-K /

SCOTT EDWARD PERRY,

Defendant.

ORDER DISMISSING INDICTMENT
Plaintiff, the United States, by and through Stephen C. Lewis, United States Attorney, by
F. L. Dunn, 01, Assistant United States Attorney, applies to the court for an order dismissing the

Indictment now pending égainst the defendant in the above styled and numbered ‘cause, for the

"reason that the defendant previously has been charged with, plead guilty to, and sentenced for

committing an offense within the jurisdiction of the District Court of Tulsa County, State of
Oklahoma, which offense involves substantially the same conduct as that which is alleged within
the Indictment now pending against the defendant in the above styled and numbered cause.
Plaintiff attached 10 its Application to Dismiss a copy of each of the following:

A.  Information filed in Case No. CF-96-2357, District Court of Tulsa County,
Oklahoma,

B.  Affidavit for arrest warrant filed in Case No. CF-96-2357, District Court of Tulqa
County, Oklahoma; and,

C.  Criminal Action Docket, District Court Clerk, Tulsa County, Oklahoma, Case No.
CF-96-2357. o - o




| THE COURT FINDS,_ paspd upon the: facts ar.ld. circumstances qL_ltli_ned above,_ thz_tt (1)
continued prosecution of the defendant for the offense alleged within the Indictment would
constitute a dual or successive prosecution of the defendant for an act for which the defendant
previously has been charged with, c;:;nvicted of, and sentenced for in the District Court of Tulsa
County, Oklahoma, (2} there has been no objection to the application filed on behalf of the
defendant, and (3) it is in the interests of justice for the Indictment to be dismissed.

THEREFORE, THE COURT ORDERS, in the interests of justice, that the Indictment now

pending against the defendant, SCOTT EDWARD PERRY, in the above styled and numbered

T & Ko
TERRY C. N, Chief
United States District Judge

cause, be and the same is hereby dismissed.




